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Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa
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 S Naidoo 
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Registration number 2000/026635/21 

 
Secretary Arcay Client Support (Pty) Ltd 

 
Company registration number 1989/000100/06 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S  REPORT 
 

The Company is pleased to report its financial results and its operations for the 12 months ending March 2012. 
 
Sales revenue increased by R18 355 400.00 representing a 20.8% increase when compared to the prior period. 
Volumes increased by 19%. 
 
The Company also invested in capacity on its veri peri line and automated the filling process.  The veri peri product 
also won the Product of the Year in the sauce category for 2012. 
 
Whilst our operating expenses increased by 8% from the previous year, the proportion of these operating costs in 
relation to revenue actually decreased by 4% from the previous year. We attribute this to non-recurring expenses in 
the previous year. 
 
Gross Profit improved by 2% from the year ended March 2011 which is attributed to the improved controls on 
planned costs and the increase in sales of the added value range of products. Production expansion costs for the 
year under review were funded from cash from the operations. 
 
Operating profits of the company have improved significantly and gross margins are moving in line with the industry 
sector.  This improved performance has also flowed to the bottom line, with fewer once off costs impacting the 
business. However, we are still working to further improve our Net Profit ratio, in line with industry norm. 
 
The group continues to experience cash flow restraints associated with such high growth levels, whilst at the same 
time continuing to reduce its loan from the Land Bank.  The board of directors are considering options to fund the 
growth of the business. 

 
Analysis of revenue by major customer: 
Revenue from the group`s two principal customers, which individually represent over 10% of revenue is as follows: 

                                  2011 2012 

Customer A          49% 42% 

Customer B 31% 27% 
 

Acquisitions and Disposals 
There were no major acquisitions or disposals of plant and equipment during the year under review. 
 
Subsequent to year end the Company entered into an agreement to dispose of its head office in anticipation of 
relocating both its factory and head office into one location by the first quarter of 2013, when its factory lease in 
Tarlton (Witstinkhoutboom) comes to an end.  A 10 year lease agreement has been signed for the new custom built 
factory and the company is planning to upgrade its plant and capacity at the same time as the factory relocation.  
 
The new purpose built factory, research and development facility, offices, plant, & equipment is designed to world 
class standards that will improve our competitiveness, and shelf life of the products that we produce. 
 
The new building will accommodate, the head office staff and factory staff under one roof improving controls and 
providing a positive, safe and exciting environment for the All Joy team, to benefit and grow with the company. 
 
The rationale for the relocation was to locate the business closer to the Company’s customers and their distribution 
centres.  The increase in rental costs will mostly be off-set by reduced distribution costs, whilst at the same time 
upgrading both the plant and improving capacity. 
 



AH Vest Limited 
(Registration number 1989/000100/06) 
Annual Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 
2012 

3 

 

 

 
We intend increasing our capacity per hour for our planned growth and the new location will facilitate production on 
shifts that will improve our competitiveness and reduce time. 
 
Future Prospects 
The focus for the new year will be to expand our tomato sauce range. We will launch an unpreserved premium 
tomato sauce packed in glass, we will have two pack sizes 250ml and 800ml and two variants Gold Gourmet and 
reduced salt variant, to target the growing health conscious market. The brand will be on the shelves of leading 
supermarkets by August 2012. 
 
We also intend bringing our single serve sachets “in-house” this is in line with our strategy to produce and package 
our products closer to our trade customers distribution centres. 
 
We will continue to develop the market using our single serving sachets, promoting trial purchase and making 
added value sauces more accessible to the emerging market. 
 
We have appointed distributors in Zambia, Zimbabwe, Botswana, Swaziland and Namibia and we intend promoting 
our brands to these African countries in the short term and there after expand into other African countries. 
 
We have achieved FDA certification on our Veri Peri range and we intend expanding the range and targeting 
Europe, the Middle East, and the US with this unique and innovative brand. 

 
 
MT Pather 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
The 2011/2012 year ending has seen immense economic challenges globally and the political leadership changes in 
Europe have had the entire world sit up and assess the future impact on their economies. I am pleased to say that 
despite numerous challenges, AH-Vest has posted a profit above budget, notwithstanding, the liquidation of the 
controlling shareholder, which continues to hamper capital raising ability in the market and affects the cash flow of 
the business. 
 
AH-Vest continues to play a pivotal role in the food production industry, and thus contributing to job creation and to 
the GDP of country. 
 
AH-Vest has met all its BEE obligations by continuing to support worthy causes, upskilling and training of 
employees. 
 
I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the management of AH-Vest for the sterling leadership that has seen 
the company grow from strength to strength. 
 
To the Board of Directors thank you for the insightful wisdom displayed and support. 

 
 
NG Mthethwa 
Chairman 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 

Sustainability  
 

Introduction 
The directors of AH-Vest Holdings Limited (“AH-Vest” or “the Group”) are pleased to present the Group’s first 
integrated sustainability and corporate governance report to stakeholders.  This is the first step in what will be a 
continuous process to move closer to the goals of sustainable development and to demonstrate AH-Vest’s 
commitment to those goals.  The board has appointed a champion at directors’ level, the Financial Director, to drive 
this process.  As can be expected this is a major task and for this reason AH-Vest has decided to adopt a staggered 
approach.  Over the next few years the board will strive to broaden and deepen the contents of this report.  This will 
be done in conjunction with the Group’s stakeholders to ensure meaningful, understandable and useful information 
is available on a timely basis, thus achieving true transparency and building a trusting relationship with all 
stakeholders.     

 
Reporting scope 
The activities of the operations in which AH-Vest has management control are included in this report. 
 
Corporate governance 
 
Introduction 
The Group endorses the principles contained in the King III report on corporate governance and confirms its 
commitment to the principles of fairness, accountability, responsibility and transparency as advocated therein.  The 
board strives to ensure that the Group is being ethically managed according to prudently determined risk parameters 
and in compliance with generally accepted corporate practices and conduct. 
 
The structure of the board 
AH-Vest is governed by a unitary board which is assisted in fulfilling its duties by an audit committee and a 
remuneration committee.  The board, which is chaired by a non-executive chairman, is scheduled to sit at least four 
times a year, but meets more frequently if circumstances require it to do so. A lead independent director has been 
appointed due to the non-executive chairman not being considered independent.  The directors bring a wide range 
of experience, diversity, insight and independence of judgment on issues of strategy, performance, resources and 
standards of conduct, to the board.  
 
AH-Vest’s memorandum of incorporation permits a maximum of 15 directors.  The names and credentials of the 
directors in office during the 2012 financial year are detailed on pages 5 and 19 of this annual report. 
 
Independence of the board and board balance 
At the year end, the board comprised five directors – three independent non-executives, and two executives.  One 
non-executive director resigned before year end and the board appointed two new independent non-executive 
directors during the forthcoming year.  The predominance of non-executive directors on the board helps maintain a 
balance of power and ensure independent decision making.  The non-executive directors offer independent 
judgment and there are no extraneous factors that could materially affect their judgment.  Fees earned by the non-
executive directors are market-related, albeit on the low end.  If there is an actual or potential conflict of interest, the 
director (executive or non-executive) concerned, after declaring his/her interest in terms of the new Companies Act, 
is excluded from the related decision-making process.  The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are 
separate in order to ensure a balance of power and authority.   

 
Board responsibilities 
The board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s performance and affairs, which includes protecting and 
enhancing the Company’s wealth and resources, timely and transparent reporting and acting at all times in the best 
interest of the Company and its stakeholders.  In fulfilling this responsibility, the board oversees the strategy, 
acquisition and disinvestment policy, risk management, financing and corporate governance policies of the 
Company. 
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The board is responsible for ensuring that controls and procedures are in place to ensure the accuracy and integrity 
of accounting records so that they provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or 
unauthorised use and that the financial records may be relied upon for maintaining accountability for assets and 
liabilities and preparing the financial statements.  The directors’ statement of responsibility is set out on page 17 of 
this report. 

 
Appointments to the board 
The company does not have a nomination committee due to the size of the company.  Thus the process for board 
appointments is by way of board approval after receiving nominations for a board appointment and considering the 
relevant experience and profile of the nominated person.  Any new appointments/delegations are considered by the 
board as a whole.  New directors appointed to the board during the year are appointed in accordance with the 
casual vacancy provisions of the company’s memorandum of incorporation, automatically retire at the next annual 
general meeting and their re-appointment is subject to the approval of shareholders at such annual general meeting.   
 
On appointment, new directors receive an induction pack, consisting of, inter alia, the memorandum of incorporation 
of the company, Section 3 of the JSE Listings Requirements relating to continuing obligations of listed companies, 
minutes of board meetings for the prior 12 months, resolutions passed during the prior 12 months, all 
announcements published on SENS in the prior 12 months and an explanation of and copies of directors’ 
declarations of interest.   
 
With the exception of the chief executive officer, one third of the directors retire by rotation each year and are eligible 
for re-election by shareholders in accordance with the memorandum of incorporation. 
 
The memorandum of incorporation does not specify an age for retirement of directors. 
 
Advice 
The directors all have unlimited access to the company secretary who, inter alia, advises the board and its 
committees on issues relating to compliance with procedures, the JSE Listings Requirements and the King reports 
on corporate governance.  Directors are furthermore, with the prior knowledge of the chief executive officer, entitled 
to ask any questions of any personnel and enjoy unrestricted access to all company documentation, information and 
property.   
 
Board and committee meetings and attendance thereof 
The directors are briefed in respect of special business and information is provided to enable them to give full 
consideration to matters under discussion.  Meeting packs are prepared and distributed for each board and sub-
committee meeting and minutes of all board and committee meetings are duly recorded. 
 
The board is composed of the following members: 

Non-executive directors Year appointed Age Role
P Mariemuthu % 25 August 2008 42 Chairman
RA Manning & 25 August 2008 49 Lead independent Non executive
MM Mawere # 25 August 2008 51 Non-executive
A Gonsalves ^ 25 August 2008 56 Non-executive
NG Mthethwa 1 November 2010 52 Independent non-executive
S Naidoo $ 02 February 2012 51 Independent non-executive
S Soni R 29 February 2012 41 Independent non-executive
Executive 
MT Pather 18 March 1989 48 Chief Executive Officer
MA Hill 16 September 2008 70 Financial Director

 
^ Resigned 18 July 2011 
& Resigned 23 January 2012 
% Resigned 8 November 2011 
# Resigned 30 September 2011 
$ Appointed on 2 February 2012 
R Appointed on 29 February 2012 
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Six board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2012 
 

Attendance at 
meetings 

24/06/2011 21/09/2011 28/09/2011 19/10/2011 02/02/2012 19/03/2012 

P Mariemuthu % √ A √ √ √ N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

RA Manning & √ √ √ √  N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

MM Mawere # A √ A N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

A Gonsalves^ A N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

N/A 
(resigned) 

NG Mthethwa √ √ √ √ √ √ 
MT Pather √ √ √ √ √ √ 
MA Hill √ √ √ √ √ √ 
S Naidoo $ N/A N/A N/A N/A √ √ 
S Soni R N/A N/A N/A N/A √ √ 
Designated Advisor √ √ √ √ √ √ 

 
A – Absent with apologies tendered 
$ - Director appointed 2 February 2012 
R - Director appointed 29 February 2012 
*% - Director resigned 8 November 2011 
& - Director resigned 23 January 2012 
# - Director resigned 30 September 2011 
^ - Director resigned 18 July 2011 
 
Board committees 
Sub-committees appointed by the board include the audit committee.  This committee meets independently but 
reports directly to the board and decisions taken by the committee require approval of the board prior to 
implementation.  Two audit committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2012.  The 
committee operates in terms of an approved charter, which defines its role. The committee is in the process of re-
aligning its charters to take cognisance of King III.  Details of the sub-committee, including responsibilities and 
members, are described below.   
 
As the audit committee is a statutory committee under the new Companies Act (and in terms of the 
recommendations set out in King III), shareholders are required to elect the members of this committee at each AH-
Vest annual general meeting. 
 
Audit Committee 
Members:  S Soni (Acting Chairperson), S Naidoo and NG Mthethwa,  
 
The committee currently comprises three independent non-executive directors and a further independent non-
executive director appointment is being considered for the coming year.  The chief executive officer, the financial 
director, and the external auditors attend meetings of the committee as invitees when required. During the year 
under review, a representative of the designated advisor attended all audit committee meetings in accordance with 
the JSE Listings Requirements for AltX companies.  
 
The committee acts in accordance with written terms of reference as confirmed by the board, which terms set out 
its authority and duties, and which terms will be reviewed during the forthcoming year.  The primary mandate of the 
committee is to ensure the independence of the external auditors, evaluate the group’s systems of internal financial 
and operational control, fraud and IT risks as they relate to financial reporting, review accounting policies and 
financial information to be issued to the public, facilitate effective communication between the board, management 
and the external auditors, recommend the appointment of, and determine, the fees payable to the internal and 
external auditors and determine and approve the level of non-audit services provided by the external auditors.  
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The committee furthermore approves the audit plan, reviews the interim and annual results before recommending 
them to the board for approval and discusses these results and the audit process with the external auditors.   

 
The attendance record of members of the audit committee at meetings is shown below: 

 
Attendance at meetings 24/06/2011 11/11/2011 
RA Manning (Chairman) √ √ 
NG Mthethwa N/A √ 
S Naidoo$ N/A N/A 
S Soni R N/A N/A 
MT Pather* √ √ 
MA Hill* √ √ 
Designated Advisor √ √ 

* - By invitation, not a committee member 
$ - Director appointed on 2 February 2012 
R - Director appointed on 29 February 2012 
 
The audit committee has considered and satisfied itself as to the appropriateness of the expertise and experience 
of the financial director, MA Hill and the finance team.  
 
Risk committee 
The company does not currently have a risk committee due to the size of the company. The Audit committee 
currently handles all issues that would have otherwise been handled by a risk committee and advises the board 
accordingly. 
 
Remuneration committee 
The company does not currently have a Remuneration committee due to the size of the company. The Audit 
committee currently handles all issues that would have otherwise been handled by a Remuneration committee and 
advises the board accordingly. 
 
Social, Ethics Committee 
The committee currently comprises of three directors, Mr Sanjay Soni (chairman), Marci Pather and Mel Hill. 
 
Meetings 
The committee is scheduled to meet at least twice a year.  As at the date of this annual report, no meetings have 
been held.  
 
Fees paid to non-executive directors 
The fees payable to non-executive directors were determined by the executive directors after consultation with 
industry experts and a review of independent remuneration surveys.  The fees are structured on a fixed per annum 
basis or per meeting basis and the proposed fees for the forthcoming year are set out below.  Shareholders are 
required to approve these non-executive directors’ fees. 
 

 Chairman Member 
Board R25 000 (monthly retainer) R5 000 (per meeting) 
Audit committee R10 000 (per meeting) R5 000 (per meeting) 

 
Details of remuneration, fees and other benefits earned by directors in the past year are disclosed on page 55 of 
this annual report and director’s dealings in shares are disclosed on page 8 of this report 
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Accounting and internal controls 
The board has established controls and procedures to ensure the accuracy and integrity of the accounting records 
are enhanced and maintained, and to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from loss or 
unauthorised use and that the financial statements may be relied upon for maintaining accountability for assets and 
liabilities and preparing the financial statements.  The directors’ responsibility statement is set out on page 17 of 
this annual report. 
 
Internal audit 
The company does not currently have an internal audit function but relies on the advice of the external auditors to 
recognise the internal control risks,who have advised management and the board about possible remedies.  The 
internal control environment has been substantially strengthened over the past two years and standard software 
has been introduced, which further reduces the risk of the control environment.  The audit committee is in the 
process of evaluating the possibility of implementing an internal audit function and internal audit is a standing 
agenda item for discussion at each audit committee meeting.   
 
External audit and auditors 
The Group’s auditors, PKF (Gauteng) Inc. (“PKF”), perform an independent and objective audit on the Group’s 
financial statements. Interim reports are not audited, but are discussed with the auditors.  The audit committee 
approves the audit plan and reviews the audit fees for the audit.  The auditors have unrestricted access to the audit 
committee and are invited to attend all audit committee meetings.  The re-appointment of the auditors is reviewed 
annually by the audit committee.  The audit committee has confirmed that the external auditors are considered to 
be independent and the external auditors have confirmed that none of their staff have any conflict of interest with 
regard to the company. 
 
Broad-based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) 
The Group supports the principles embodied in the Code of Good Practice on B-BBEE and has focused 
management effort on achieving alignment with the Code.  AH-Vest has undertaken an external B-BBEE rating and 
has achieved a rating as a Level 3 contributor (2011: Level 5 contributor) on the Generic Scorecard.  The Groups’ 
B-BBEE rating is monitored on a continuous basis and management has the authority and responsibility to take the 
necessary steps to further improve its rating.  With various initiatives that are in place the Group is confident of 
improving this rating. 
 
Interests of directors and share dealings 
The register of interests of directors in contracts is available to members of the public on request.  The direct and 
indirect interest of directors as at 31 March 2012 is as follows: 
 

Shareholder Beneficially held Total shares
Total

%
 Direct Indirect 
S Naidoo* 20 000 0 20 000 0.02
MT Pather 3 200 000 3 570 375 6 770 375 6.64
A Gonsalves* 10 000 2 142 225 2 152 225 2.11
Total 3 230 000 5 712 600 8 942 600 8.77

* - non-executive 
 

The direct and indirect interest of directors as at 31 March 2011 is as follows: 
 

Shareholder Beneficially held Total shares
Total

%
 Direct Indirect 
MT Pather 3 200 000 3 570 375 6 770 375 6.64
A Gonsalves* 10 000 2 142 225 2 152 225 2.11
Total 3 230 000 5 712 600 8 942 600 8.77

* - non-executive  
 
The other directors of AH-Vest do not have a direct or indirect interest in the securities of the company.  There were 
no director’s dealings in the securities of the company in the period under review. 
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Trading company shares 
The company enforces a restricted period for dealing in its shares, in terms of which any dealings in shares by all 
directors and senior personnel is disallowed by the board from the date of the reporting period to the time that 
results are released and at any time that such individuals are aware of un-published price sensitive information, 
whether the company is trading under cautionary announcement as a result of such information or not. 
 
The policy for and dealing in shares by all directors and senior personnel is that clearance to deal must be obtained 
from at least one of following nominated directors, the chairman of the board, the chief executive officer or the 
chairman of the audit committee.  If any of the above persons requires clearance, one of the other two persons will 
approve such transactions.  Directors are required to report share dealings to the designated advisor within 24 hours  
of such dealing and the designated advisor is required to release the details of any such trades on SENS no later 
than 24 hours after receiving such notification.  
 
Company secretary 
 
The name and address of the company secretary is set out on page 70 of this annual report. 
 
The company secretary is required to provide the members of the board with guidance and advice regarding their 
responsibilities, duties and powers and to ensure that the board is aware of all legislation relevant to or affecting the 
company.  The company secretary is required to ensure that the company complies with all applicable legislation 
regarding the affairs of the company, including the necessary recording of meetings of the board, board committees 
and shareholders of the company.  The board is of the opinion that Arcay Client Support (Pty) Ltd has the requisite 
attributes, qualifications and experience to fulfil its commitments effectively.  It requires a decision of the board as a 
whole to remove the company secretary, should this become necessary.  
 
Code of ethics 
 
The board subscribes to the highest level of professionalism and integrity in conducting its business and dealing with 
all of its stakeholders. 
 
In adhering to its code of ethics, the board is guided by the following broad principles: 
 
• Businesses should operate and compete in accordance with the principles of free enterprise; 
• Free enterprise will be constrained by the observance of relevant legislation and generally accepted principles 

regarding ethical behaviour in business; 
• Ethical behaviour is predicated on the concept of utmost good faith and characterised by integrity, reliability and 

a commitment to avoid harm; 
• Business activities will benefit all participants through a fair exchange of value or satisfaction of needs; and 
• Equivalent standards of ethical behaviour are expected from individuals and companies with whom business is 

conducted.  
 

Principles contained in King III not complied with and the reasons for non-compliance 
 
The board endorses the principles contained in the King III report on corporate governance and confirms its 
commitment to those principles where, in the view of the board, they apply to the business.  Compliance is 
monitored regularly and the board has undertaken an internal review process in determining compliance.  Where 
areas of non-compliance or partial compliance have been identified these have been listed below, together with the 
reasons therefore, as is required by King III. 
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GOVERNANCE ELEMENT AND ASSOCIATED PRINCIPLE Comply 
Partially 
Comply 

Under 
review/do 
not comply 

ETHICAL LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP       
Effective leadership based on an ethical foundation √ 
Responsible corporate citizen √ 
Effective management of company's ethics √ 
Assurance statement on ethics in integrated annual report √ 
BOARDS AND DIRECTORS       
The board is the focal point for and custodian of corporate governance √ 
Strategy, risk, performance and sustainability are inseparable √ 
Directors act in the best interest of the company √ 
The chairman of the board is an independent non-executive director √ 
Framework for the delegation of authority has been established √ 
The board comprises a balance of power, with a majority of non-
executive directors who are independent √ 
Directors are appointed through a formal process √ 
Formal induction and on-going training of directors is conducted √ 
GOVERNANCE ELEMENT AND ASSOCIATED PRINCIPLE   
The board is assisted by a competent, suitably qualified and 
experienced company secretary √ 
Regular performance evaluation of the board, its committees and the 
individual directors √2 
Appointment of well-structured committees and oversight of key 
functions √3 
An agreed governance framework between the group and its 
subsidiary boards is in place √ 
Directors and executives are fairly and responsibly remunerated √ 
Remuneration of directors and senior executives is disclosed √ 
The company's remuneration policy is approved by its shareholders √ 
AUDIT COMMITTEE   
Effective and independent √ 
Suitably skilled and experienced independent non-executive directors √ 
Chaired by an independent non-executive director √ 
Oversees integrated reporting √  
A combined assurance model is applied to improve efficiency in 
assurance activities √ 
Satisfies itself on the expertise, resources and experience of the 
company's finance functions √ 
Oversees internal audit √2 
Integral to the risk management process √ 
Oversees the external audit process √ 
Reports to the board and shareholders on how it has discharged its 
duties √ 
INTEGRATED REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE       
Ensures the integrity of the company's integrated annual report √ 
Sustainability reporting and disclosure is integrated with the company's 
financial reporting √2 
Sustainability reporting and disclosure is independently assured √ 
INTERNAL AUDIT        
Ensures that there is an effective risk based internal audit √4 
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GOVERNANCE ELEMENT AND ASSOCIATED PRINCIPLE Comply 
Partially 
Comply 

Under 
review/do 
not comply 

GOVERNANCE ELEMENT AND ASSOCIATED PRINCIPLE    
Internal audit follows a risk based approach to its plan √4 
Internal audit provides a written assessment of the effectiveness of the 
company's system of internal controls and risk management √4 
The audit committee responsible for overseeing internal audit √4 
Internal audit is strategically positioned to achieve its objectives √4 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, CODES, RULES AND STANDARDS       
The board ensures that the company complies with relevant laws √ 
The board and directors have a working understanding of the 
relevance and implications of non-compliance √ 
Compliance risk forms an integral part of the company's risk 
management process √5 
The board has delegated to management the implementation of an 
effective compliance framework and processes √5 
THE GOVERNANCE OF RISK    
The board is responsible for the governance of risk and setting levels 
of risk tolerance √ 
The risk management committee assists the board in carrying out its 
risk responsibilities √ 
The board delegates the process of risk management to management. √ 
The board ensures that risk assessments and monitoring is performed 
on a continual basis √ 
Frameworks and methodologies are implemented to increase the 
probability of anticipating unpredictable risks √5 
Management implements appropriate risk responses √ 
The board receives assurance on the effectiveness of the risk 
management process √5 
Sufficient risk disclosure to stakeholders √ 
THE GOVERNANCE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY    
The board is responsible for information technology (IT) governance √ 
IT is aligned with the performance and sustainability objectives of the 
company √ 
Management is responsible for the implementation of an IT 
governance framework √6 
The board monitors and evaluates significant IT investments and 
expenditure √ 
GOVERNANCE ELEMENT AND ASSOCIATED PRINCIPLE    
IT is an integral part of the company's risk management √ 
IT assets are managed effectively √ 
The risk management committee and audit committee assist the board 
in carrying out its IT responsibilities √ 
GOVERNING STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS    
Appreciation that stakeholders' perceptions affect a company's 
reputation √ 
There is an appropriate balance between its various stakeholder 
groupings √ 

  

Equitable treatment of stakeholders √ 
Transparent and effective communication to stakeholders √ 
Delegated to management proactively deal with stakeholder 
relationships √ 
Disputes are resolved effectively and timeously  √7 
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Explanations of partial, under review or non-compliance with the requirements of King III 
√1 The chairman is not considered independent so a lead independent director has been appointed. 
√2 The company intends implementing a formal delegation of authorities’ matrix as well as looking at board 

evaluation in the forthcoming year. 
√3 Due to the size of the company and in accordance with AltX Listings Requirements, the company does not have 

a nomination or remuneration committee at present. 
√4 The audit committee continually reviews and assesses the need for internal audit.  However, no internal audit 

function has yet been established. 
√5  Whilst the board continually monitors risk, no formal framework or methodology has been implemented and no 

formal risk management process exists. 
√6 Management oversees the It environment but no formal governance framework is in place due to the current IT 

environment. 
√7 Whilst attempts are made to resolve disputes timeously this is not always possibly due to third party positioning. 
√8 Not applicable as the main operations of the company are conducted through the holding company and 

subsidiary boards do not have outside directors. 
 
Designated advisor 
 
In accordance with the JSE Limited’s Listings Requirements relating to companies listed on the Alternative 
Exchange, the company is required to appoint a designated advisor at all times. The company’s designated advisor 
is Arcay Moela Sponsors (Proprietary) Limited. 
 
Risks 
The Group does not yet have a comprehensive risk matrix but steps will be taken to introduce this.  All potential 
risks are timeously brought to the Board’s attention.  
 
Stakeholders 
 
The Group is committed to on-going and effective communication with all stakeholders, and subscribes to a policy 
of open and timeous communication.  In addition, the Group recognises that there are many varying stakeholders 
within the business, with differing requirements. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
1.     Members of the Audit Committee 
 
The report of the audit committee is presented as required by section 61(8)(a)(iii) of the Companies Act, 2008 (No 
71 of 2008). 
 
The audit committee consisted of the following independent non–executive directors during the period under review: 
 
Name 
Ms NG Mthethwa 
Mr Suresh Naidoo 
Mr Sanjay Soni 
Ms R Manning (resigned 23 January 2012) 
 
The chairman of the audit committee recently changed from Ms NG Mthethwa to Mr S Naidoo after Ms NG 
Mthethwa became the chairman of AH-Vest.  However due to unforeseen circumstances, Mr S Soni has 
assumed the role of acting chairperson.  The company is in the process of identifying a third independent non-
executive director to serve on the committee in the forthcoming year at which point Ms NG Mthethwa will resign as 
a member of the audit committee. 
 
2.     Functions and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee 
 
Statement of audit committee responsibilities for the year ended 31 March 2012 
The role of the audit committee is to assist the board by performing an objective and independent review of the 
functioning of the organisation’s finance and accounting control mechanisms.     It exercises its functions through 
close liaison and communication with corporate management and the internal and external auditors. 
 
The committee is guided by its terms of reference, dealing with membership, structure and levels of authority 
and has the following responsibilities: 
 
• ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities; 
• nominating for appointment a registered auditor who, in the opinion of the audit committee, is independent 

of the company; 
• matters relating to financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting and disclosure; 
• internal and external audit policy including determination of fees and terms of engagement; 
• activities, scope, adequacy, and effectiveness of the internal audit function and audit plans; 
• review/consideration of expertise and experience of the financial director and the financial team; 

review/approval of external audit plans, findings, reports, fees and determination and approval of any non-
audit services that the auditor may provide to the company; 

• compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct; and 
• compliance with the company’s code of ethics 
 
The audit committee addressed its responsibilities properly in terms of the charter during the 2012 financial year.  
One of these responsibilities was the assessment of the independence of the auditor.  The committee is satisfied 
that the auditor was independent of the company.  It has further satisfied itself that the audit firm and designated 
auditor are accredited per the JSE List of Accredited Auditors.   
 
The audit committee has established a non-audit services policy as well as an approval process for non audit 
services, where utilised. During the year under review non-audit services were utilised for a limited assurance 
review of the results for the 6 months ended 30 September 2011 for the Land and Agricultural Development Bank 
of South Africa (“Land Bank”). 
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3.     Frequency of Meetings 
 

The committee met two times during the 2012 financial year. 
 

4.     Expertise and Experience of Financial Director 
 

As required by paragraph 3.84(h) of the JSE Listings Requirements, the audit committee has satisfied itself that 
the financial director has appropriate expertise and experience. 
 
5. Internal audit 

 
Based on the size of the company, the accounting package and systems used and considering information and 
explanations given by management together with discussion held with the external auditors on the results of their 
audit, the company has not implemented a separate internal audit function during the 2012 financial year.  The 
audit committee is of the opinion that AH- Vest’s system of internal financial controls is effective and forms a 
basis for the preparation of reliable financial statements. The consideration of internal audit remains a standing 
agenda item and is reconsidered at each audit committee meeting.  The committee also serves as a link between 
the board of directors and the auditors.  The committee is satisfied that it has complied with its legal, regulatory 
and other responsibilities. 
 
6.     Financial Statements 

 
Management has reviewed the financial statements with the audit committee and the audit committee has 
reviewed them without management or external auditors being present. The quality of the accounting policies, 
as well as accounting systems, are discussed with the external auditors. The audit committee considers the 
financial statements of AH-Vest Limited to be a fair presentation of its financial position on the 31 March 2012 
and of the results of the operations, changes in equity and cash flows for the period ended then, in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act. 

 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Sanjay Soni 
Acting Chairperson 
Johannesburg 
06 July 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AH-VEST LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements  
We have audited the financial statements of AH-Vest Limited, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of 
financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, statements 
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory notes, and the directors’ report, as set out on pages 18 to 59. 
 
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position 
of AH-Vest Limited as of 31 March 2012, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with  International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of 
South Africa. 

 
PKF (Gauteng) Inc Director: S Ranchhoojee 

Registered Auditors  Pretoria 

Chartered Accountants (SA)  06 July 2012 

Registration number: 2000/026635/21 
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL 
 

The directors are required by the Companies Act, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008) (“the Companies Act”) to maintain 
adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the group financial statements 
and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the group financial 
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as at the end of the financial year and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements. 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
Companies Act, and the JSE Listings Requirements for companies listed on the JSE Securities Exchange and 
are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates. 
 
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To 
enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control 
aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper 
delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate 
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the group 
and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the group’s business is 
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management 
in the group is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the group. 
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints. 
 
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the 
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 
preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only 
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. 
 
The directors have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2013 and, in the light of 
this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the group has access to adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
 
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the group's financial 
statements. The financial statements have been examined by the group's external auditors and their report is 
presented on page 16. 
 
The financial statements set out on pages 21 to 59, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, 
were approved by the board of directors on 6 July 2012 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 
 
 
  

NG Mthethwa                                                            M.T. Pather 
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 DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

1. BACKGROUND, INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
AH-Vest was registered and incorporated as a private company in the Republic of South Africa in 1988 under 
the name All Joy Foods (Proprietary) Limited and was converted to a public company on 07 December 1998.  
The company transferred its listing from the Venture Capital Market to the Alternative Exchange (“AltX’) of the 
JSE Limited in 2004, and the name was changed on 24 December 2008. 
 
During 2009 the company changed its year end from February to the end of March each year, in order to align 
its year end with that of its new controlling shareholder and also changed its name to AH-Vest Limited. 
 

2. INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
 

AH-Vest is involved in the manufacturing and sale of food products and operates principally in South Africa. 
 

3. INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 
 

The accounting policies adopted for purposes of this report comply, and have been consistently applied in all 
material respects, with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  These results have been 
prepared in terms of accounting policies consistent with the prior year.  
 

4. FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 
Sales revenue increased by R18 355 400, representing a 20.8% increase when compared to the prior period. 
Volumes again increased in the period under review by 19%, as a result of the prior year strategy to change 
the packaging used for tomato sauce from glass to plastic which allowed the savings to be passed on to the 
customer.   
 
Expenses consisting of raw material, fuel costs, electricity, staff wages and co-operative advertising to defend 
shelf space increased by 8.1%.  
 
The Gross Profit percentage improved by 2.1% which is attributed to the improved controls on planned costs, 
which together with the increase in sales of added value range of products, lead to an increase in gross profit 
of more than 6%. 
 
Production expansion costs for the year under review were funded from cash from operations. Operating 
profits of the company have improved significantly and gross margins are in-line with the industry sector. 
 
Improved controls and working capital management have assisted in improving cash flow generated from 
operations, which has primarily been invested growth and in plant and equipment.   
 

5. ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND ISSUES OF SHARES FOR CASH 
 
Acquisitions and disposals 
 
There were no acquisitions or disposals during the year under review.  However, shareholders are advised that 
subsequent to year end, a subsidiary of the company has disposed of the head office premises for a 
consideration of R5.15 million, in anticipation of a relocation of the separate head office and factory premises 
into one combined new location at the end of the calendar year in terms of a new lease agreement signed for 
an initial period of 10 years. 
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6. DIRECTOR CHANGES  
 
During the period under review and to the date of this report, the following director changes occurred.   

 
Name and designation Date appointed Date resigned
MT Pather (Chief Executive Officer) 18 March 1989 
P Mariemuthu (Executive Chairman) 25 August 2008 8 November 2011
M Hill (Financial Director) 16 September 2008 
A Gonsalves (Non-executive Director) 25 August 2008 18 July 2011
MD Mawere (Non-executive Director) 25 August 2008 30 September 2011
R Manning (Independent Non-executive Director) 25 August 2008 23 January 2012
NG Mthethwa (Independent Non-executive Director) 1 November 2010 
S Naidoo (Independent Non-executive Director) 2 February 2012 
S Soni (Independent Non- executive Director) 29 February 2012 

 
Mr MT Pather remains as Chief Executive Officer of the group.  Messrs S Naidoo and S Soni were appointed 
to the board during February 2012 as Independent Non-executive directors and Mrs NG Mthethwa assumed 
the role of Chairperson.  The company will be investigating the appointment of an additional Independent Non-
executive director during the forthcoming year. 

 
7. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 

 
The company has two subsidiaries as at the date of this report, namely All Joy Property Holdings (Proprietary) 
Limited and All Joy Foods (Proprietary) Limited.  Details of the company’s investment in subsidiaries are 
detailed in note 5 of the annual financial statements.  Subsequent to the year end, All Joy Property Holdings 
(Proprietary) Limited has disposed of the property held, which property housed the head office of the company.   
 

8. COMPANY SECRETARY 
 

The company secretary remained unchanged during the period under review.  Refer to inside back cover for 
the details of the company secretary. 

 
9. AUDITORS 

 
PKF (Gauteng) Inc. acted as the company’s auditors for the period ended 31 March 2012 and will continue in 
office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008) (“the Act”).  The audit 
committee have confirmed that it is satisfied with the independence of the auditors in accordance with section 
94(7) (a) of the Act. 
 

10. SHARE CAPITAL   
 

The authorised and issued share capital of the company as at 31 March 2012 is set out in note 14 to the 
annual financial statements.  As at 31 March 2012, there were 101 973 333 issued ordinary shares and 398 
026 667 unissued ordinary shares.  There was no change in the authorised share capital during the period 
under review.   

 
11. DIVIDEND 

  
The directors have decided not to declare a dividend for the period under review. (2011: Nil) 

 
12. LITIGATION  

  
There is no major litigation pending against the company or its subsidiaries that will have a material effect on 
the group. 
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13. GOING CONCERN 

 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going 
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation 
of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course 
of business.   
 

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
There are no material subsequent events that have occurred between 31 March 2012 and the date of the 
annual financial statements.   

 
15. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS 

 
Directors interests in contracts are reported in the related party note contained in note 29 to the annual 
financial statements.  No new contracts were entered into during the year under review. 
 

16. CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER 
 

The ultimate controlling shareholders of AH-Vest Limited are the members of the Africa Heritage Society and 
there has been no change in control during the year under review in terms of the ultimate controlling 
shareholder.  This shareholding was held through Africa Heritage Properties (Proprietary) Limited and was 
previously held through Africa Heritage Investments (Proprietary) Limited (in liquidation).  The dispute 
regarding the direct shareholder reported in the prior year has been resolved through the courts and is Africa 
Heritage Investments (Proprietary) Limited (in liquidation) at the date of this report.  The liquidators have 
advertised the sale of the 57% shareholding and shareholders will be advised on SENS in due course of the 
outcome of such offer and whether a mandatory offer will be required to be extended to all minority 
shareholders. 
 

17. FUTURE PROSPECTS AND POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
With the company returning to operational and net profitability, increased volumes and new products being 
launched, the board believes that the prospects for the group are sound.  As announced on SENS, the 
company has signed a new lease agreement for new factory and head office premises and expects to relocate 
all its operations by January 2013.  The current lease at the factory comes to an end in January 2013 and the 
head office premises have been sold in anticipation of the relocation. 

 
DECLARATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
In terms of section 88 (e) of the Companies Act, 2008 (No 71 of 2008) (“Act”), we certify that, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, the company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies for the financial year ended 31 
March 2012, all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the aforesaid Act, and that all such 
returns are true, correct and up to date. 
 
 

 
 
Arcay Client Support (Pty) Limited 
Registration Number 1998/025284/07 
Company Secretary 
6 July 2012 
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 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

Group Company 

2012 2011 2012 2011

   Note(s) R R R R
Assets 
 

Non-Current Assets 
 

Property, plant and equipment 3 12 565 157 14 143 998 6 621 794 7 961 476
Other intangible assets 4 832 655 1 110 206 832 655 1 110 206
Investments in subsidiary 5 - - 100 100
Loans to group companies 6 - - 1 559 473 2 047 360
Deferred tax 8 450 000 450 000 450 000 450 000

  13 847 812 15 704 204 9 464 022 11 569 142
 

Current Assets      

Inventories 10 16 063 276 10 267 639 16 063 276 10 267 639
Advances paid to employees 11 17 775 28 715 17 775 28 715
Trade and other receivables 12 15 615 905 12 366 198 15 615 905 12 366 198
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3 103 108 5 773 173 3 103 008 5 773 073

  34 800 064 28 435 725 34 799 964 28 435 625

Total Assets  48 647 876 44 139 929 44 263 986 40 004 767
 

Equity and Liabilities      

Equity      
Share capital 14 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071
Revaluation reserves 15 4 688 610 4 688 610 - -
Accumulated loss  (6 885 606) (10 541 807) (6 536 221) (9 956 095)

  19 096 075 15 439 874 14 756 850 11 336 976
 

Liabilities      

Non-Current Liabilities      
Other financial liabilities 16 11 213 775 11 305 986 11 213 775 11 305 986
Finance lease obligation 17 193 811 442 484 193 811 442 484
Operating lease liability 9 - 97 101 - 97 101

  11 407 586 11 845 571 11 407 586 11 845 571
 

Current Liabilities      

Other financial liabilities 16 1 195 418 1 169 470 1 195 418 1 169 470
Finance lease obligation 17 248 673 286 266 248 673 286 266
Operating lease liability 9 49 879 - 49 879 -
Trade and other payables 18 16 650 245 15 398 748 16 605 580 15 366 484

  18 144 215 16 854 484 18 099 550 16 822 220

Total Liabilities  29 551 801 28 700 055 29 507 136 28 667 791

Total Equity and Liabilities  48 647 876 44 139 929 44 263 986 40 004 767
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 
 

Group Company 

2012 2011 2012 2011

   Note(s) R R R R
Revenue  

20 106 639 879 88 284 479 106 639 879 88 284 479
Cost of sales  (64 859 794) (55 741 723) (64 859 794) (55 741 723)

Gross profit  41 780 085 32 542 756 41 780 085 32 542 756
Other income  280 405 134 026 280 405 134 026
Operating expenses  (37 192 244) (34 264 594) (37 433 085) (34 505 435)

Operating profit (loss) 21 4 868 246 (1 587 812) 4 627 405 (1 828 653)

Investment revenue 23 9 783 474 423 9 783 474 423
Finance costs 24 (1 221 828) (1 334 760) (1 217 314) (1 334 760)

Profit (loss) for the year  3 656 201 (2 448 149) 3 419 874 (2 688 990)
Other comprehensive income  - - - -

Total comprehensive income (loss)  3 656 201 (2 448 149) 3 419 874 (2 688 990)

Total comprehensive income (loss) 
attributable to: 

 

Owners of the parent  3 656 201 (2 448 149) 3 419 874 (2 688 990)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share  
34 3,59 (2,40)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share 34 3,59 (2,40)
Headline earnings per share 34 3,90 (2,40)
Diluted headline earnings 
per share 

34 3,90 (2,40)
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Share capital            Share 

premium 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total share 

capital 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revaluation 

reserve 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Accumulated 

loss 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total equity 

R                         R                         R                         R                         R                         R 
 

 

 
Group 
Balance at 01 April 2010 1 019 734 20 273 337 21 293 071 4 688 610 (8 093 658) 17 888 023
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (2 448 149) (2 448 149)

Balance at 01 April 2011 1 019 734 20 273 337 21 293 071 4 688 610 (10 541 807) 15 439 874
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 3 656 201 3 656 201

Balance at 31 March 2012 1 019 734 20 273 337 21 293 071 4 688 610 (6 885 606) 19 096 075

Note(s) 14 14 14 15 

Company 
Balance at 01 April 2010 1 019 734 20 273 337 21 293 071 - (7 267 105) 14 025 966
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (2 688 990) (2 688 990)

Balance at 01 April 2011 1 019 734 20 273 337 21 293 071 - (9 956 095) 11 336 976
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 3 419 874 3 419 874

Balance at 31 March 2012 1 019 734 20 273 337 21 293 071 - (6 536 221) 14 756 850

Notes 14 14 14 15 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

 
 

 

 

Group Company 

2012 2011 2012 2011

   Note(s) R R R R
 

 
Cash flows from operating activities 
 
Cash generated from (used in) 

 
 
 
 

26 (569 013) 7 641 959 (1 061 414) 7 156 359
operations  
Interest income  9 783 474 423 9 783 474 423
Finance costs  (1 221 828) (1 334 760) (1 217 314) (1 334 760)

Net cash from operating activities  (1 781 058) 6 781 622 (2 268 945) 6 296 022

 
Cash flows from investing activities 

 

 

Purchase of property, plant and 
 

3 (547 418) (3 025 300) (547 418) (3 025 300)
equipment  
Loans to group companies repaid  - - 487 887 485 600
Interest capitalised to fellow subsidiary  - (454 636) - (454 636)
loan  
Net cash from investing activities  (547 418) (3 479 936) (59 531) (2 994 336)

 
Cash flows from financing activities 

 

 

Repayment of other financial liabilities  (66 263) (1 877 865) (66 263) (1 877 865)
Movement in advances paid to  10 940 (28 715) 10 940 (28 715)
employees  
Finance lease payments  (286 266) (300 824) (286 266) (300 824)

Net cash from financing activities  (341 589) (2 207 404) (341 589) (2 207 404)

 
Total cash movement for the year 

 
(2 670 065) 1 094 282 (2 670 065) 1 094 282

Cash at the beginning of the year  5 773 173 4 678 891 5 773 073 4 678 791

Total cash at end of the year 13 3 103 108 5 773 173 3 103 008 5 773 073
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1.    Presentation of Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
AC500 series of interpretations as issued by the APB, the Companies Act of South Africa and the listing requirements 
of the JSE Securities Exchange. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and 
incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands. 
 
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 
 
1.1  Consolidation 
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and all entities, including 
special purpose entities, which are controlled by the company. 
 
Control exists when the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities. 
 
The results of subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the effective date of acquisition to 
the effective date of disposal. 
 
Adjustments are made when necessary to the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring their accounting policies 
in line with those of the group. 
 
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. 
 
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary are identified and recognised separately from the 
group's interest therein, and are recognised within equity. Profit/Loss of subsidiary attributable to non-controlling 
interests are allocated to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a debit balance being recognised for non- 
controlling interest. 
 
Transactions which result in changes in ownership levels, where the group has control of the subsidiary both before 
and after the transaction are regarded as equity transaction and are recognised directly in the statement of changes 
in equity. 
 
The difference between the fair value of consideration paid or received and the movement in non-controlling interest 
for such transactions is recognised in equity attributable to the owners of the parent. 
 
Where a subsidiary is disposed of and a non-controlling shareholding is retained, the remaining investment is 
measured to fair value with the adjustment to fair value recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal of the controlling interest. 
 
1.2  Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgment is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include: 
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1.2   Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)  

Trade receivables and trade payables 

The group assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether 
an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the group makes judgements as to whether there is 
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. 
 
The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for 
national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate 
with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the 
estimated loss emergence period. 
 
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock 
 
An allowance is made to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management has made 
estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the 
operating profit note. 
 
Fair value estimation 
 
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future 
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the group for similar financial 
instruments. 
 
Impairment testing 
 
The group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are 
largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have 
occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows 
used to determine the value in use of intangible and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially 
change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors including, sales, growth, company risk and 
performance history, together with economic factors such as inflation, interest and JSE sector results. 
 
Taxation 
 
Judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are 
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate taxation determination is uncertain during the ordinary 
course of business. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated taxation audit issues based on estimates of 
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final taxation outcome of these matters is different from the amounts 
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income taxation and deferred taxation provisions in the 
period in which such determination is made. 
 
The group recognises the net future taxation benefit related to deferred income taxation assets to the extent that it is 
probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability 
of deferred income taxation assets requires the group to make significant estimates related to expectations of future 
taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the 
application of existing taxation laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income 
differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the group to realise the net deferred taxation assets recorded at the 
end of the reporting period could be impacted. 
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1.2  Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)  

Residual values 

Plant and machinery 
 

Due to the specialised nature of the company's plant and machinery the residual value attached to these assets has 
been estimated to be nil. The company estimates that the useful life of the plant and machinery, being the period of 
time for which the assets can be utilised without significant modifications, replacements or improvements is 10 
years based on current levels of production and repairs and maintenance costs incurred.  
 
Motor vehicles 
 
The entity has a policy of utilising all motor vehicles for a period of 3 years. It is estimated that passenger vehicles 
have a residual value approximating 30% of its initial purchase price. 

 
Patents and trademarks 

 
The Group has classified its purchased brands as intangible assets with a useful life of 4 years. The intangible 
assets are expected to continue to generate future revenue for its useful life. 

 
1.3  Property, plant and equipment 

 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

- it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and 
- the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. 

 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs 
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

 
Plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

 
Revaluations are made on property and buildings with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not 
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

 
When an item of property and buildings is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the 
asset. 

 
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent 
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the current 
period. The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in 
the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces 
the amount accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. 

 
The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property and buildings is transferred directly to retained 
earnings when the asset is derecognised. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value. 

 
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 



28

AH Vest Limited 
(Registration number 1989/000100/06) 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2012
 

 

 

 
1.3  Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

Land and buildings is carried at the revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made 
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be 
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

 
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited to other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the 
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the 
current period. The decrease is debited in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing 
in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. 

 
Depreciation is provided to write down property, plant and equipment as follows: 

 

Item Average useful life 

Land Indefinite 

Buildings 20 years 

Factory equipment 4 years 

Plant and machinery 10 years 

Furniture and fixtures 12 years 

Motor vehicles 5 years 

Office equipment 5 years 

IT equipment 8 years 

Computer software 3 years 

Leasehold improvements 10 years 

Lab equipment 10 years 

Pallets 5 years 
 

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting 
estimate. 

 
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or 
loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 
amount of the item. 

 

1.4  Other intangible assets 
 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 
- it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 

entity; and 
- the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is 
incurred. 
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1.4  Other intangible assets (continued) 
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised 
when: 

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 
there is an ability to use or sell it. 
it will generate probable future economic benefits. 
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell 
the asset. 
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 

 
Other intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end. Internally 
generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
other intangible assets. 

 
Amortisation is provided to write down the other intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as 
follows: 

 

Item Useful life 

Brand names 4 years 

Patents, trademarks and other rights 4 years 
 

1.5  Investments in subsidiary 
 

Company financial statements 
 

In the company’s separate financial statements, investments in the subsidiary are carried at cost less 
any accumulated impairment. 

 
The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of: 

the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity 
instruments issued by the company; plus 
any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary. 

 
1.6  Financial instruments 

 
Classification 

 
The group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 

Loans and receivables 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

 
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place 
at initial recognition. 



30

AH Vest Limited 
(Registration number 1989/000100/06) 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2012
 

 

 

 
 
1.6  Financial instruments (continued) 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 
 
The group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 
 
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. 
 
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method. 
 
Derecognition 
 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have 
been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
At each reporting date the group assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to 
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired. 
 
For amounts due to the group, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment. 
 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying 
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount 
would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 
 
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified as available- 
for-sale. 
 
Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are held at cost 
because fair value was not determinable. 
 
Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in 
profit or loss within operating expenses.  When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses. 
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1.6  Financial instruments (continued) 

Loans to (from) group companies 

These include loans to and from holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries and are recognised initially at fair 
value plus direct transaction costs. 
 
Loans to group companies are classified as loans and receivables.  

Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees  

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.  

Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or 
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, 
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments 
(more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance 
recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 
 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against 
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against operating expenses in profit or loss. 
 
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 
 
Trade and other payables 
 
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate method. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. 
 
Bank overdraft and borrowings 
 
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value plus transaction cost, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in 
accordance with the group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs. 
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1.7  Taxation 
 
Income taxation assets and liabilities 
 
Income taxation for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already 
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as 
an asset. 
 
Income taxation liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the taxation rates (and taxation laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Deferred taxation assets and liabilities 
 
A deferred taxation liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred 
taxation liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the 
transaction, effects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (taxation loss). 
 
A deferred taxation asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred taxation 
asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of 
the transaction, effects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (taxation loss). 
 
Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the taxation rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on taxation rates (and taxation laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Tax expenses 
 
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, 
except to the extent that the taxation arises from: 
a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or 
a business combination. 
 
Current taxation and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the taxation relates to 
items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income . 
 
Current taxation and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the taxation relates to items that are 
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly in equity. 
 
1.8  Leases 
 
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A 
lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. 
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1.8  Leases (continued) Finance leases – lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position at amounts equal to the 
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the statements of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 
 
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in 
the lease. 
 
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the 
remaining balance of the liability. 
 
Operating leases – lessee 
 
Operating lease payments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Any contingent rents are 

expensed in the period they are incurred. 

Where the fixed rate escalation is not in line with the general expected inflation norms then operating leases are 
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
1.9  Inventories 
 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 
 
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and 
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 
 
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all 
inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity. 
 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all 
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a 
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 
 
1.10 Impairment of assets 
 
The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 
 
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the group also: 
- tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment 

annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed 
during the annual period and at the same time every period. 

- tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually. 
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1.10 Impairment of assets (continued) 
 
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If 
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. 
 
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the cash-generating 
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the 
carrying amount of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in 
the following order: 

first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and 
then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. 

 
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated. 
 
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior periods. 
 
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than 
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated 
as a revaluation increase. 
 
1.11 Share capital and equity 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
 
1.12 Employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits 
 
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 
vacation leave and bonuses), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted. 
 
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 
 
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. 
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued) Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 
 
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined 
contribution plans where the group’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined 
contribution retirement benefit plan. 
 
1.13 Provisions and contingencies 
 
Provisions are recognised when: 

the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

 
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. 
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if 
the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for 
the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. 
 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
 
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured 
as a provision. 
 
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised separately 
are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 28. 
 
1.14 Revenue 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
the group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the group retains 
neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over 
the goods sold; 
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group; and the costs incurred 
or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates, and value added taxation. 
 
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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1.15 Cost of sales 
 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all 
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a 
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 
 
1.16 Translation of foreign currencies 
 
Foreign currency transactions 
 
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 
 
At the end of the reporting period foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate; 
 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different 
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements 
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 
 
1.17 Segment Reporting 
 
An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in the business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group's 
other components. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the group's CEO to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete 
financial information is available. 
 
2.    New standards and interpretations 
 
2.1  Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 
 
In the current year, the group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations: 
 
IFRS 3, Business Combinations 
- Amendments to transition requirements. 
 
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The Group has adopted the 
standard for the first time in the 2012 financial statements. 
The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the results of the company, nor on its disclosures. 
 
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
-Clarification of statement of changes in equity. 
 
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The Group has adopted the 
standard for the first time in the 2012 financial statements. 
The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the results of the company, nor on its disclosures. 
 
IAS 24, Related Party Disclosure 
- Clarification of the definition of a related party. 
 
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The Group has adopted the 
standard for the first time in the 2012 financial statements. 
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The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the results of the company, nor on its disclosures. 
 
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The Group has adopted the 
standard for the first time in the 2011 financial statements. 
The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the results of the company, nor on its disclosures. 
 
2.2  Standards and Interpretations early adopted 
 
The group has chosen not to early adopt any the standards and/or interpretations 
 
2.3  Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant 
 
The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the group’s accounting 
periods beginning on or after 01 April 2012 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations: 
 
IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
Amendments relating to oil and gas assets and determining whether an arrangement contains a lease (effective 1 
January 2010) 
- Amendment relieves first-time adopters of IFRSs from providing the additional disclosures introduced through 
Amendments to IFRS 7 in March 2009 (effective from 1 July 2010) 
- Amendment clarifies that changes in accounting policies in the year of adoption fall outside of the scope of IAS 8 
(effective from 1 January 2011) 
- Amendment permits the use of revaluation carried out after the date of transition as a basis for deemed cost 
(effective from 1 January 2011) 
- Amendment permits the use of carrying amount under previous GAAP as deemed cost for operations subject to 
rate regulation (effective from 1 January 2011) 
- Standard amended to provide guidance for entities emerging from severe hyperinflation and resuming presentation 
of IFRS compliant financial statements, or presenting IFRS complaint financial statements for the first time. (effective 
from 1 July 2011) 
-Amendments add an exception to the retrospective application of IFRSs to require that first-time adopters apply the 
requirements in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IAS 20 Accounting for government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance prospectively to government loans existing at the date of transition to IFRS (effective 1 
January 2013) 
-Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle amendments clarify the options available to users when repeated 
application of IFRS 1 is required and add relevant disclosure requirements.(effective 1 January 2013) Annual 
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle amendments to borrowing costs(1 January 2013) 
 
IFRS 3, Business Combinations 
- Amendments to transition requirements for contingent consideration from a business combination that occurred 
before the effective date of the revised IFRS (effective from 1 January 2011) 
- Clarification on the measurement of non-controlling interests (effective from 1 January 2011) 
- Additional guidance provided on un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards (effective from 
1 January 2011) 
 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
- Amendment clarifies the intended interaction between qualitative and quantitative disclosures of the nature and 
extent of risks arising from financial instruments and removed some disclosure items which were seen to be 
superfluous or misleading (effective from 1 January 2011) 
- Amendments require additional disclosure on transfer transactions of financial assets, including the possible effects 
of any residual risks that the transferring entity retains. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a 
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of a reporting period (effective from 
1 July 2011) 
-Amendments require entities to disclose gross amounts subject to rights of set-off, amounts set off in accordance 
with the accounting standards followed, and the related net credit exposure. This information will help investors 
understand the extent to which an entity has set off in its balance sheet and the effects of rights of set-off on the 
entity’s rights and obligations (effective 1 January 2013) 
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
-New standard that forms the first part of a three part project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement (effective from 1 January 2015) 
 
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
-New standard that replaces the consolidation requirements in SIC-12 Consolidation—Special Purpose Entities and 
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Standard builds on existing principles by identifying the 
concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial 
statements of the parent company and provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where 
this is difficult to assess (effective 1 January 2013). 
 
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
-New guidance on fair value measurement and disclosure requirements.(effective from 1 January 2013). 
 
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
-New requirements to group together items within OCI that may be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the 
income statement in order to facilitate the assessment of their impact on the overall performance of an entity 
(effective from 1 July 2012). 
-Amendments clarifying the requirements for comparative information including minimum and additional comparative 
information required (effective from 1 January 2013). 
 
IAS 12 Income Taxes 
- Rebuttable presumption introduced that an investment property will be recovered in its entirety through sale. 
(effective from 1 January 2012). 
 
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
-Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments to the recognition and classification of servicing equipment 
(effective 1 January 2013). 
 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
-Amendments to the accounting for current and future obligations resulting from the provision of defined benefit 
plans. 
 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
-Amendments require entities to disclose gross amounts subject to rights of set-off, amounts set off in accordance 
with the accounting standards followed, and the related net credit exposure. This information will help investors 
understand the extent to which an entity has set off in its balance sheet and the effects of rights of set-off on the 
entity’s rights and obligations (effective 1 January 2013) 
-Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments to clarify the tax effect of distribution to holders of equity 
instruments (1 January 2013). 
 
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 
- Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments to improve the disclosures for interim financial reporting and 
segment information for total assets and liabilities (effective from 1 January 2013). 
 
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 
-Clarification on the intended meaning of the term “fair value” in respect of award credits (effective from 1 January 
2013) 
 
Management has assessed the impact of these amendments and standards on the reported results of the company 
and concluded that it is unlikely that they will have a material impact on the company’s annual financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

3.    Property, plant and equipment 
 

 
Group                                                                      2012                                                           2011 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value 

Land                                             2 116 814                     -      2 116 814      2 116 814                     -      2 116 814 
Buildings                                       4 783 186        (956 637)     3 826 549      4 783 186        (717 478)     4 065 708 
Plant and machinery                  11 997 061     (6 599 663)     5 397 398    11 500 189     (5 775 772)     5 724 417 
Furniture and fixtures                        23 248            (6 869)          16 379         827 186        (572 922)        254 264 
Motor vehicles                                 735 573        (496 293)        239 280         854 210        (553 586)        300 624 
Office equipment                                         -                     -                     -         803 113        (372 003)        431 110 
Computer equipment                       663 283        (221 808)        441 475      1 148 671        (574 755)        573 916 
Leasehold improvements             2 078 644     (1 867 328)        211 316      2 078 644     (1 444 698)        633 946 
Lab equipment                                            -                     -                     -         155 239        (112 223)          43 016 
Pallets                                                         -                     -                     -           13 013          (12 830)               183 
Factory equipment                          408 438          (92 492)        315 946                     -                     -                     - 

Total                                           22 806 247   (10 241 090)   12 565 157    24 280 265   (10 136 267)   14 143 998 
 
 

Company                                                                 2012                                                           2011 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value 

Plant and machinery                  11 997 061     (6 599 663)     5 397 398    11 500 189     (5 775 772)     5 724 417 
Furniture and fixtures                        23 248            (6 869)          16 379         827 186        (572 922)        254 264 
Motor vehicles                                 735 573        (496 293)        239 280         854 210        (553 586)        300 624 
Office equipment                                         -                     -                     -         803 113        (372 003)        431 110 
Computer equipment                       663 283        (221 808)        441 475      1 148 671        (574 755)        573 916 
Leasehold improvements             2 078 644     (1 867 328)        211 316      2 078 644     (1 444 698)        633 946 
Lab equipment                                            -                     -                     -         155 239        (112 223)          43 016 
Pallets                                                         -                     -                     -           13 013          (12 830)               183 
Factory equipment                          408 438          (92 492)        315 946                     -                     -                     - 

Total                                           15 906 247     (9 284 453)     6 621 794    17 380 265     (9 418 789)     7 961 476 
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

3.    Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2012 
 

Opening 
balance 

Additions       Transfers    Depreciation   Impairment 
loss 

Total 

Land                                             2 116 814                     -                     -                     -                     -      2 116 814 
Buildings                                       4 065 708                     -                     -        (239 159)                    -      3 826 549 
Plant and machinery                    5 724 417         496 873                     -        (823 892)                    -      5 397 398 
Furniture and fixtures                      254 264             4 643                     -          (33 737)       (208 791)          16 379 
Motor vehicles                                 300 624                     -                     -          (61 344)                    -         239 280 
Office equipment                             431 110                     -        (431 110)                    -                     -                    - 
Computer equipment 573 916 45 902 -        (102 019) (76 324) 441 475
Leasehold improvements 633 946 - -       (422 630) - 211 316
Lab equipment 43 016 - -           (4 098) (38 918) -
Pallets 183 - -              (183) - -
Factory equipment - - 431 110       (115 164) - 315 946

 14 143 998 547 418 -     (1 802 226) (324 033) 12 565 157
 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2011 
 

 Opening Additions Depreciation Total 
balance  

Land 2 116 814 - - 2 116 814
Buildings 4 304 867 - (239 159) 4 065 708
Plant and machinery 3 574 049 2 781 619 (631 251) 5 724 417
Furniture and fixtures 278 193 8 956 (32 885) 254 264
Motor vehicles 202 601 134 676 (36 653) 300 624
Office equipment 92 240 431 000 (92 130) 431 110
Computer equipment 157 510 501 384 (84 978) 573 916
Computer software 16 651 11 774 (28 425) -
Leasehold improvements 758 080 103 172 (227 306) 633 946
Lab equipment 47 115 - (4 099) 43 016
Pallets 2 309 - (2 126) 183

 11 550 429 3 972 581 (1 379 012) 14 143 998
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Plant and machinery                                                                  3 574 049      2 781 619 (631 251) 5 724 417
Furniture and fixtures                                                                   278 193            8 956 (32 885) 254 264
Motor vehicles                                                                             202 601        134 676 (36 653) 300 624
Office equipment                                                                           92 240        431 000 (92 130) 431 110
Computer equipment                                                                   157 510        501 384 (84 978) 573 916
Computer software                                                                        16 651          11 774 (28 425) -
Leasehold improvements                                                            758 080        103 172 (227 306) 633 946
Lab equipment                                                                               47 115                     - (4 099) 43 016
Pallets                                                                                              2 309                     - (2 126) 183

5 128 748      3 972 581 (1 139 853) 7 961 476

 
Pledged as security 

  

Carrying value of assets pledged as security:   
 

Property plant and equipment                                    5 943 363           5 837 726 
Assets are pledged as security for the 
loan from the Land Bank. See note 16 
for detail of the liability. 

 

5 943 363 5 837 726

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)   
 

Leasehold improvements                                                    211 316            633 946 
 

211 316 633 946

 
Revaluations 

  

 
Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

3.    Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2012 
 

Opening 
balance 

Additions       Transfers    Depreciation   Impairment 
loss 

Total 

Plant and machinery                    5 724 417         496 873                     -        (823 892)                    -      5 397 398 
Furniture and fixtures                      254 264             4 643                     -          (33 737)       (208 791)          16 379 
Motor vehicles                                 300 624                     -                     -          (61 344)                    -         239 280 
Office equipment                             431 110                     -        (431 110)                    -                     -                    - 
Computer equipment 573 916 45 902 -        (102 019) (76 324) 441 475
Leasehold improvements 633 946 - -       (422 630) - 211 316
Lab equipment 43 016 - -           (4 098) (38 918) -
Pallets 183 - -             (183) - -
Factory equipment - - 431 110       (115 164) - 315 946

 7 961 476 547 418 -     (1 563 067) (324 033) 6 621 794
 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2011 
 

Opening 
balance 

Additions    Depreciation        Total 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of the revaluations was 25 May 2009. Revaluations were performed by independent valuer, Mr 
Edward Gus Bonini, appraiser for the District of Johannesburg to the Master of the High Court, Gauteng province. 
Mr Edward Gus Bonini is not connected to the group. 
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

3.    Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

Land and buildings are re-valued independently. 
 

The valuation was performed using the direct comparison method where the property is compared to equal property 
size and relevant adjustments made for building size. 

 
These assumptions were based on current market conditions present at 31 March 2009 

 
No revaluation was performed in the current year. 

 
The carrying value of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been: 

 

Land 678 421 678 421 -                          -
Buildings 1 178 929 1 240 978 -                         -

 

A register containing the information required by section Regulation 25 (3) of the South African Companies Act 71 
of 2008 is available for inspection at the registered office of the company. 

 
4.    Other intangible assets 

 

 
Group                                                                      2012                                                           2011 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
value 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
value 

Patents                                            334 748          (83 687)        251 061         334 748                     -         334 748 
Brand names                                   775 458        (193 864)        581 594         775 458                     -         775 458 

Total                                             1 110 206        (277 551)        832 655      1 110 206                     -      1 110 206 
 
 

Company                                                                 2012                                                           2011 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
value 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
value 

Patents                                            334 748          (83 687)        251 061         334 748                     -         334 748 
Brand names                                   775 458        (193 864)        581 594         775 458                     -         775 458 

Total                                             1 110 206        (277 551)        832 655      1 110 206                     -      1 110 206 

 
Reconciliation of other intangible assets - Group - 2012 

 
Opening 
balance 

Amortisation        Total 

Patents                                                                                                                334 748          (83 687)        251 061 
Brand names                                                                                                       775 458        (193 864)        581 594 

1 110 206        (277 551)        832 655 
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

4.    Other intangible assets (continued) 
 

Reconciliation of other intangible assets - Group - 2011 
 

Opening 
balance 

Total 

Patents                                                                                                                                       334 748         334 748 
Brand names                                                                                                                              775 458         775 458 

1 110 206      1 110 206 

 
Reconciliation of other intangible assets - Company - 2012 

 
Opening 
balance 

Amortisation        Total 

Patents                                                                                                                334 748          (83 687)        251 061 
Brand names                                                                                                       775 458        (193 864)        581 594 

1 110 206        (277 551)        832 655 

 
Reconciliation of other intangible assets - Company - 2011 

 
Opening 
balance 

Total 

Patents                                                                                                                                       334 748         334 748 
Brand names                                                                                                                              775 458         775 458 

1 110 206      1 110 206 
 

Pledged as security 
 

Carrying value of intangible assets pledged as security: 
 

Patents                                                                          251 061              334 748              251 061              334 748 
Brands                                                                           581 594              775 458              581 594              775 458 

 
Used to secure borrowings granted to the group by the Land Bank of R 12 409 193 (2011: R 12 475 456).- refer to 
note 16. 

 

Other information  
 

Patents and Brands 
Patents 

 
251 061 

 
334 748 

 

 
251 061 334 748

Brands 581 594 775 458 581 594 775 458

The useful life of the Intangible is considered 4 years.     
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

5.    Investments in subsidiary 
 
Name of company Held by % voting 

power 
2012

% voting 
power 
2011 

Carrying 
amount 

2012

Carrying 
amount 

2011
All Joy Property Holdings (Pty) Ltd AH Vest Ltd 100% 100% 100 100
 
The carrying amounts of subsidiaries are shown net of impairment losses. 

 
6.    Loans to (from) group companies 

 
Subsidiaries 

 
All Joy Property Holdings (Pty) Ltd 
The loan is unsecured bears no interest, 
and will be repaid once the property is 
sold. 

-                          -           1 559 473           2 047 360 

 
Fellow subsidiaries 

 
Africa Heritage Power Supply (Pty) Ltd 
The loan is unsecured bear interest at 
0% (2011:15.5%) and is to be repaid in 
one year in a single payment. 

 

 
Impairment of loans to fellow 
subsidiaries 

2 954 884           2 954 884           2 954 884           2 954 884 
 
 
 
 
2 954 884           2 954 884           2 954 884           2 954 884 

(2 954 884)         (2 954 884)         (2 954 884)         (2 954 884) 
 

 
-                          -                          -                          - 

 
Credit quality of loans to group companies 

 
The credit quality of loans to group companies that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference 
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates: 

 
Fair value of loans to and from group companies 

 
Loans to group companies                                                       -                          -           1 559 473           2 047 360 

 
The carrying value less impairment of loans to group companies are assumed to approximate their fair values as 
the loans bear market related interest. 

 
Loans to group companies impaired 

 
As of 31 March 2012, loans to group companies of R - (2011: R 2 954 884) were impaired and provided for. 

The ageing of these loans is as follows: 

Over 12 months                                                                        -           2 954 884                          -           2 954 884 
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

7.    Financial assets by category 
 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 
 

Group - 2012 
 

 
 

Loans and 

 
 

Total 
 
Trade and other receivables 

receivables 
15 615 905 15 615 905 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 103 108 3 103 108

 18 719 013 18 719 013

 
Group - 2011 

  

 
 
 
Trade and other receivables 

 

Loans and 
receivables 
12 122 791 

Total 
 

12 122 791 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 773 173 5 773 173

 17 895 964 17 895 964

 
Company - 2012 

  

 
 
Loans to fellow subsidiary 

Loans and 
receivables 

1 559 473 

Total
 

1 559 473 
Trade and other receivables 15 615 905 15 615 905
Cash and cash equivalents 3 103 108 3 103 108

 20 278 486 20 278 486

 
Company - 2011 

  

 
 
Loans to subsidiary 

 

Loans and 
receivables 

2 047 360 

Total 
 

2 047 360 
Trade and other receivables 12 122 791 12 122 791
Cash and cash equivalents 5 773 073 5 773 073

 19 943 224 19 943 224
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

8.    Deferred tax 
 

Deferred tax asset 
 
Provision for leave pay 

 
 

223 271 

 
 

141 339 

 

 
 

223 271 141 339
Provision for bad debts 2 749 12 163 2 749 12 163
Settlement discounts 399 154 240 126 399 154 240 126
Revaluation reserve (669 646) (669 646) - -
Property , Plant and Equipment 66 965 - 66 965 -
Provision for credit notes 118 220 112 703 118 220 112 703
Operating leases 68 233 151 084 68 233 151 084
Prepaid expenses (27 545) (32 992) (27 545) (32 992)
Assessed loss 3 482 225 4 966 543 3 482 225 4 966 543
Unrecognised deferred tax asset (3 213 626) (4 471 320) (3 883 272) (5 140 966)

 450 000 450 000 450 000 450 000

 
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (liability) 

   

 

At beginning of the year 450 000 450 000 
 

450 000 450 000
Originating and revising temporary 
differences on leave pay 
Originating and revising temporary 

81 932
 

(9 415) 

(88 423)
 

(379 857) 

81 932 
 

(9 415) 

(88 423)

(379 857)
differences on bad debts 
Originating temporary difference on 

 
159 028 

 
32 221 

 
159 028 32 221

settlement discounts 
Originating and revising temporary 

 
66 965 

 
(142 937) 

 
66 965 (142 937)

differences on property , plant and 
equipment 
Originating temporary difference on 

 
5 517 

 
34 444 

 
 

5 517 34 444
credit notes 
Originating temporary difference on 

 
(82 851) 

 
(6 424) 

 
(82 851) (6 424)

operating leases 
Originating and revising temporary 

 
5 447 

 
1 237 

 
5 447 1 237

differences on prepaid expenses 
Assessed loss utilised 

 
(1 484 319) 

 
1 131 698 

 
(1 484 319) 1 131 698

Assessed loss unrecognised 1 257 696 (581 959) 1 257 696 (581 959)

 450 000 450 000 450 000 450 000

 
Unrecognised deferred tax asset 

   

 

Unused tax losses not recognised as deferred 
tax assets. 

12 436 518 17 737 655 
 

12 436 518 17 389 417

 

9.    Operating lease accrual 
 

Non-current liabilities - (97 101) - (97 101)
Current liabilities (49 879) - (49 879) -

 (49 879) (97 101) (49 879) (97 101)
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 

 

 
10.  Inventories 
 
Raw materials, components 

 
 
 

4 283 599

 
 
 

4 013 217

 
 
 

4 283 599 

 
 
 

4 013 217
Work in progress 278 538 167 349 278 538 167 349
Finished goods 10 818 751 4 883 263 10 818 751 4 883 263
Stock in transit 682 388 1 203 810 682 388 1 203 810

 16 063 276 10 267 639 16 063 276 10 267 639

 
Inventory pledged as security 

    

 

Inventory pledged as security 6 000 000 6 000 000 6 000 000 6 000 000
 

Inventory was pledged as security to the Land Bank for overdraft facilities of R 15 000 000 (2011: R 15 000 000) of 
the group. At year end the overdraft amounted to R 12 409 193 (2011: R 12 475 456). 

 
11.  Advances paid to employees 

 
 

Advances paid to employees 

At beginning of the year 28 715  - 28 715  - 

Advances  - 28 715  - 28 715 

Repayments (10 940)  - (10 940)  - 

17 775 28 715 17 775 28 715
 

The advances paid to employees are unsecured and bear no interest. 
 

12.  Trade and other receivables 
 
Trade receivables 

 
 

15 351 194 

 
 

11 941 261 

 
 

15 351 194 

 
 

11 941 261
Prepayments 44 314 53 700 44 314 53 700
Deposits 10 000 10 000 10 000 10 000
Value Added Tax - 243 407 - 243 407
Other receivable 210 397 117 830 210 397 117 830

 15 615 905 12 366 198 15 615 905 12 366 198
 

Trade and other receivables pledged as security 
 

Trade and other receivables were pledged as security to the Land Bank for overdraft facilities of R 15 000 000 
(2011: R 15 000 000) of the group. At year end the overdraft amounted to R 12 409 193 (2011: R 12 475 456). 

 
Credit quality of trade and other receivables 

 
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to historical information about counterparty default rates: 

 
 



AH Vest Limited 
(Registration number 1989/000100/06) 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2012

48

 

 

 
Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
 

12.  Trade and other receivables (continued) 

 

Counterparties without external credit   
rating 598 20 202 598 20 202
Group 2 15 184 110 11 353 808 15 184 110 11 353 808
Group 3 151 565 237 104 151 565 237 104
Group 4 14 921 330 147 14 921 330 147

 15 351 194 11 941 261 15 351 194 11 941 261

 
Group 1 – new customer (less 6 months). 

    

 

Group 2 – existing customer (more than 6 months) with no defaults in the past. 
 

Group 3 – existing customer (more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past. All defaults were fully recovered. 

Group 4 - existing customer (more than 6 months) with some defaults in past and partial recoveries. 

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 
 

Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 
2012, R 212 898 (2011: R 752 274) were past due but not impaired. 

 
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows: 

 

3 months past due 212 898 752 274 212 898 752 274

Trade and other receivables impaired     
 

As of 31 March 2012, trade and other receivables of R 13 089 (2011: R 57 920) were impaired and provided for. 
 

The amount of the provision was R (13 089) as of 31 March 2012 (2011: R (57 920)). 
 

The ageing of these loans is as follows:  
 

3 to 6 months 65 445 228 648 
 

65 445 228 648
Over 6 months - 598 142 - 598 142

 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables 
 

Opening balance 57 920 1 866 762  57 920 1 866 762
Unused amounts reversed (44 831) (1 808 842)  - (1 808 842)

 13 089 57 920  57 920 57 920
 

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in the 
statement of comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when 
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. 

 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. 
The group does not hold any collateral as security. 
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Group Company

    
2012 2011 2012 2011

R R R R
 

 
13.  Cash and cash equivalents 

    

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:     
 

Cash on hand 2 583 1 612 
 

2 483 1 512 
Bank balances 3 100 525 5 771 561 3 100 525 5 771 561

 3 103 108 5 773 173 3 103 008 5 773 073

 
The total amount of undrawn facilities 
available for future operating activities 
and commitments 

2 590 807 2 524 544 
 

2 590 807 2 524 544 

14.  Share capital     
 

Authorised     
500 000 000 Ordinary shares of 1 cent each 5 000 000 5 000 000 5 000 000 5 000 000

 

The unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors in terms of a resolution of shareholders passed 
at the last annual general meeting. This authority remains in force until the next annual general meeting. 

 

Issued  
101 973 333 Ordinary shares of R0.01 each 1 019 734 1 019 734 1 019 734 1 019 734
Share premium 20 359 260 20 359 260 20 359 260 20 359 260
Share issue costs written off against share (85 923) (85 923) (85 923) (85 923)
premium 

 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071 21 293 071

 
15.  Revaluation reserve 

    

 

In terms of the articles of association, there are no restrictions on the distribution of the revaluation surplus. 
 

Building 3 250 217 3 250 217 - -
Land 1 438 393 1 438 393 - -

 4 688 610 4 688 610 - -

 
16.  Other financial liabilities 

 

Held at amortised cost 
Land Bank Borrowing 12 409 193 12 475 456 12 409 193 12 475 456

 
 
Land Bank loan terms: 

    

The loan is in the form of a term loan of R15 000 000 and the principal debt and interest are to be settled 
on 31 August 2018. The term loan are repaid by monthly payments of R203 000. 
Land Bank reserve the right to determine and fix the method of interest calculation and the adjustment of 
interest rate from time to time. The current interest rate is equal to prime plus 1% 
Granting of loan facility is subject to regular review and reclaimable on discretion of the Land Bank.
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16.  Other financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Land Bank loan security 

Deed of Cession of book debts 
Deed of Cession of insurance policy for inventory 
A surety covering bond nos. B32355/2004 and 65999/2007 for amount of R 7 000 000 over land and 
buildings, being Portion 27 (apportion of portion 6) of the farm Vierfontein 321, and a notarial covering 
bond no. BN32356/2004 for an amount of R 6 000 000 over inventories of any nature, as well as movable 
property in general 
Limited deed of suretyship by Mr M.T. Pather (CEO) for R 5 000 000 
Cession of lease agreement for property on which plant and equipment is situated of AH Vest Ltd 
A hypothecation of the company's trademarks and brands registered at the relevant authorities dated 28 
October 2008 
Breach of the loan agreement payments will result in penalty interest of prime plus 2% 

 

Non-current liabilities 
At amortised cost 

 

 
11 213 775 

 
11 305 986 

 

 
11 213 775 

 
11 305 986

 
Current liabilities 
At amortised cost 

 
 

1 195 418 
 

1 169 470 

 
 

1 195 418 
 

1 169 470

 12 409 193 12 475 456 12 409 193 12 475 456
 

 
17.  Finance lease obligation 

    

 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 280 075

 

 
342 843 280 075 342 843

- in second to fifth year inclusive 202 086 482 120 202 086 482 120

 482 161 824 963 482 161 824 963
less: future finance charges (39 677) (135 583) (39 677) (135 583)

Present value of 
minimum lease 

t

442 484 689 380 442 484 689 380

 
Present value of 
minimum lease 
payments due 248 673

 

 
 
 

286 266 248 673 286 266
- in second to fifth year inclusive 193 811 442 484 193 811 442 484

 442 484 728 750 442 484 728 750
 

It is group policy to lease certain motor vehicles and equipment under finance leases. 
 

The average lease term was 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate ranged between 9.5 % to 10.5% 
(2011: 9%). 

 
Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have 
been entered into for contingent rent.The group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's 
charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3. 
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Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
Defaults and breaches 

 
No defaults or breaches of lease terms or payments have taken place in either the current or prior period. 

 

18.  Trade and other payables  
 

Trade payables 12 888 347 11 744 022 12 888 351 11 744 026
Value Added Taxation 227 794 5 600 210 993 -
Other payables 3 534 104 3 649 126 3 506 236 3 622 458

 16 650 245 15 398 748 16 605 580 15 366 484
 

19.  Financial liabilities by category 
 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 
 

Group - 2012 
 

 
 

Financial 

 
 

Total 
 
 
 
Other financial liabilities 

liabilities at 
amortised cost 

 
12 409 193 

 
 

12 409 193 
Trade and other payables 16 650 245 16 650 245
Finance lease obligation 442 484 442 484

 29 501 922 29 501 922

 
Group - 2011 

  

 
 
 
 
 
Other financial liabilities 

 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 
13 171 743 

Total 
 
 
 

13 171 743 
Trade and other payables 15 393 148 15 393 148
Finance lease obligation 32 463 32 463

 28 597 354 28 597 354

 
Company - 2012 

  

 
 
 
 
 
Other financial liabilities 

 

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost 
 

12 409 193 

Total 
 
 
 

12 409 193 
Trade and other payables 16 605 580 16 605 580
Finance lease obligation 442 484 442 484

 29 457 257 29 457 257
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Company - 2011 

 

Other financial liabilities Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost 
13 171 743 

Total

13 171 743
Trade and other payables 15 366 484 15 366 484
Finance lease obligation 32 463 32 463

 28 570 690 28 570 690
 
20.  Revenue 

 

Sale of goods 116 942 535 96 324 929 116 942 535 96 324 929
Rebates (10 302 656) (8 040 450) (10 302 656) (8 040 450)

 106 639 879 88 284 479 106 639 879 88 284 479

 
21.  Operating profit (loss) 

    

Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following: 
 

Operating lease charges 
 

Premises 

Straight-line amounts 109 110 173 008 589 110 653 008

Impairment on loans to group companies  - 2 954 884 - 2 954 884

Amortisation of intangible assets  277 552 - 277 552 -

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1 802 225 1 379 009 1 563 066 1 139 850

Employee costs 15 306 931 13 594 770 15 306 931 13 594 770

Amount expensed in respect of retirement 
benefit plans 

324 033 - 324 033 -

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 324 033 - 324 033 -
 

 
22.  Auditors’ remuneration 

 

Fees 600 000 599 501 600 000 599 501 

Non-Audit services 10 080 2 300 10 080  2 300 

610 080 601 801 610 080 601 801 
 
  23.  Investment revenue 
 

 Interest on group loan accounts 9 783 474 423 9 783 474 423 
 
  24.  Finance costs 
 

 Land Bank 1 217 314 1 298 797 1 217 314 1 298 797 

 Current 4 514 35 963  4 514 35 963 

1 221 828 1 334 760 1 221 828 1 334 760 
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25.  Taxation 
 

Major components of the tax expense 
 

Reconciliation of the tax expense 
 

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense. 
 

Accounting (loss) profit                                               3 656 201          (2 448 149)          3 419 874          (2 688 990) 
 

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% 
(2011: 28%) 

1 023 736             (685 482)             957 565             (752 917) 

 
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable 
income 
Fines and Penalties                                                                  -                     108                          -                     108 
Non-deductible legal fees                                              156 244              203 070              156 244              203 070 
Non-deductible expenses                                                77 715                          -                77 715                          - 
Tax losses carried forward                                                        -           1 064 263                          -           1 131 698 
Tax losses utilised                                                     (1 257 695)                         -          (1 191 524)                         - 
Originating temporary differences                                             -             (581 959)                         -             (581 959) 

-                          -                          -                          - 
 

No provision has been made for 2012 tax as the group has an assessed loss. The estimated tax loss available for 
set off against future taxable income is R 13 245 887 (2011: R 17 737 655). 

 

26.  Cash (used in) generated from operations
 
Profit (loss) before taxation   

 
 

3 656 201 

 
 

(2 448 149) 

 
 

3 419 874 

 
 

(2 688 990)
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 2 079 777 1 379 009 1 840 618 1 139 850
Interest received (9 783) (474 423) (9 783) (474 423)
Finance costs 1 221 828 1 334 760 1 217 314 1 334 760
Impairment loss 324 033 2 954 884 324 033 2 954 884
Movements in operating lease liabilities (47 222) (22 941) (47 222) (22 941)
and accruals 
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (5 795 637) 1 893 244 (5 795 637) 1 893 244
Trade and other receivables (3 249 707) (658 181) (3 249 707) (658 181)
Trade and other payables 1 251 497 3 683 756 1 239 096 3 678 156

 (569 013) 7 641 959 (1 061 414) 7 156 359
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2012 2011 2012 2011
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27.  Commitments 

    

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)     
 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 

 
825 282 

 
948 600 

 

 
825 282 

 
1 428 600

- in second to fifth year inclusive - 790 500 - 790 500

 825 282 1 739 100 825 282 2 219 100
 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties. Leases are 
negotiated for an average term of three years. No contingent rent is payable. 

 
28.  Contingencies 

 
Litigation 

 
There are material legal or arbitration proceedings, which include proceedings that are pending or threatening the 
company, which may have, or have had, in the recent past, being at least 12 months from date of this report, a 
material effect on the group’s financial position. These include: 

 
- Financial Services Board (“FSB”) investigation over the affairs of AH-Vest Limited: 

 
The Enforcement Committee of the FSB has imposed a penalty of R1 500 000 on AH-Vest Limited. AH-Vest Limited 
had prepared an appeal against the findings of guilt and the administrative penalties imposed by the Enforcement 
Committee of the FSB. 

 
No provision has been raised for this penalty as AH Vest legal representatives and directors best estimates 
indicated that it is not likely that the penalty would be enforced by the FSB appeal board. 

 
- National Empowerment Fund (“NEF”) legal action: 

 
The NEF has claimed that the shares they have been allocated was actually a loan granted. They are claiming back 
the value paid over per the legal proceedings. A possible liability of R5 000 000 may arise as a result of this action. 

 
No provision has been raised for this penalty as AH Vest legal representatives and directors best estimates 
indicated that it is not likely that the NEF would succeed. 

 
There is no reimbursement from any third parties for potential obligations of the group. 

 
29.  Related parties 

 
` 

Relationships 
Ultimate holding company                                               Africa Heritage Properties (Pty) Ltd  
Fellow subsidiary                                                              Africa Heritage Power Supply (Pty) Ltd  
Subsidiaries                                                                     All Joy Property Holdings (Pty) Ltd  
Shareholders with significant influence                      Farm Foods Holdings (Pty) Ltd  
 National Empowerment Fund  
 Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Ltd  
 M.T. Pather 
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29. Related parties (continued) 
 

Close family member of key management                                       Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Ltd 
Members of key management                                                          M.T. Pather 

M.A. Hill 
 

Related party balances 
 
Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related 

 

parties 
All Joy Property Holding (Pty) Ltd 1 559 473 2 047 360

Related party transactions 
 

Purchases from related parties 
Purple Rain Properties (Pty) Ltd 928 455 647 793 928 455 647 793
Rebel Farmers 57 270 - 57 270

 

Rent paid to related parties 
All Joy Property Holding (Pty) Ltd 480 000 480 000
A. Gonsalves 1 034 903 802 340 - 802 340

 

Impairments 
Africa Heritage Power Supply (Pty) Ltd - 2 954 884 - 2 954 884

 
30.  Directors' emoluments 

    

Executive     
 

2012 
M.T. Pather 

Remuneration 
1 350 999 

Travel        Medical Aid 
164 287         140 448 

 

Others 
202 650 

Total 
1 858 384

M.A. Hill 1 187 031 62 625          31 896 - 1 281 552

 2 538 030 226 912         172 344 202 650 3 139 936

 
2011 
M.T. Pather 

Remuneration 
1 066 899

Travel            Medical 
156 000        114 260 

 
Other 
691 662

Total 
2 028 821

M.A. Hill 857 674 60 000          28 731 278 139 1 224 544
A. Gonsalves 229 814 -                    - - 229 814
P. Mariemuthu 300 000 -                     - - 300 000

 2 454 387 216 000         142 991 969 801 3 783 179

 
Non-executive 

    

 

2012 Directors fees      Total
NG Mthethwa 92 500 92 500
R. Manning 33 000 33 000
P Mariemuthu 228 000 228 000
S Naidoo 10 000 10 000
S Soni 5 000 5 000
MD Mawere 5 000 5 000

TOTAL 373 500   373 500
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2011 
M.D. Mawere 

Directors fees 
2 500 

     Total
2 500

R. Manning 25 000 25 000
A Gonsalves 10 000 10 000

 37 500 37 500

 
Other remuneration includes Leave paid , Back pay and Provident fund payments 

  

31.  Change in estimate   

Other intangible assets   
 

The useful life of Other intangible assets was estimated in 1998 to be indefinite. In the current period management 
have revised their estimate to 4 years. The effect of this revision has increased the amortisation for the current and 
future periods by R 277 552 

 
The impact on tax is R 77 714 

 
32.  Risk management 
 
Capital risk management 

 
The group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group's ability to continue as a going concern in 
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

 
The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 17, 16, cash 
and cash equivalents disclosed in note 13, and equity as disclosed in the statements of financial position. 

 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

 
Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the debt: equity ratio. 

 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including 
current and non-current borrowings) as shown in the statements of financial position) less cash and cash 
equivalents. Total equity is represented in the statements of financial position. 

 
The group's strategy is to maintain a debt: equity ratio of between 1.30 to 1. 

 
There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or 
externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year. 
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32. Risk management (continued) 
 
The debt: equity ratio at 2012 and 2011 respectively were as follows 
 

Total borrowings 
Finance lease obligation 

 

 
17 

 
442 484 

 
728 750 

 
442 484 

 
728 750

Other financial liabilities 16 12 409 193 12 475 456 12 409 193 12 475 456
Operating lease liabilities  49 879 97 101 49 879 97 101
Short term obligations  16 650 245 15 398 748 16 605 580 15 366 484

  29 551 801 28 700 055 29 507 136 28 667 791
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 13 3 103 108 5 773 173 3 103 008 5 773 073

Net debt  26 448 693 22 926 882 26 404 128 22 894 718
Total equity  19 096 075 15 439 874 14 756 850 11 336 976

Total capital  45 544 768 38 366 756 41 160 978 34 231 694

 
Debt equity ratio 

 
138 % 55 % 178 % 62 % 

Liquidity risk      
 

 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due 
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, group treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining 
availability under committed credit lines. The group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future 
commitments. The group manages liquidity risk through an on-going review of future commitments and credit 
facilities. Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. 

 
The table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant 
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal 
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

 

Group 
 
At 31 March 2012 

 
 

Less than 1

 
 

Between 1

 

 
 

Between 2 

 
 

Over 5 
 
Borrowings 

year
2 436 000

and 2 years
2 436 000

and 5 years 
5 167 456 

 
-

Trade and other payables 16 650 245 - - -
Finance lease obligations 248 673 193 810 - -

 

At 31 March 2011 
 
Borrowings 

Less than 1 
year 

2 436 000

Between 1 
and 2 years 

2 436 000

 

Between 2 
and 5 years 

7 308 000 

Over 5 
years 

 
Trade and other payables 15 393 148 - - -
Finance lease obligations 286 266 248 673 193 810 -

Company  

At 31 March 2012 
 
Borrowings 

Less than 1 
year 

2 436 000

Between 1 
and 2 years 

2 436 000

Between 2 
and 5 years 

5 167 456 

Over 5 years 
 

-
Trade and other payables 16 605 580 - - -
Finance lease obligations 248 673 193 810 - -
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Trade and other receivables - - % 15 615 915 - - - -
normal credit terms   
Trade and other payables - - % 16 650 245 - - - -
normal credit terms   
Finance leases 13,00 % 286 266 193 810 - - -
Loan to subsidiary - % 1 559 473 - - - -
Bond over property , plant 9,00 % 2 436 000 2 436 000 2 436 000 2 436 000 2 731 456
and equipment - floating rate
 
Credit risk 

      

Financial instrument Group - 2012 Group - 2011 Company - Company -
  2012 2011
Loan to fellow subsidiary 1 559 473 2 954 884 1 559 473 2 954 884
Bank balance 3 103 108 5 773 173 3 103 108 5 773 173
Trade and other receivables 15 615 905 12 366 198 15 615 905 12 366 198

33.  Going concern     

Group                                          Company 

2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 

32.  Risk management (continued) 
 

 

At 31 March 2011 
 
Borrowings 

Less than 1 
year 

2 436 000

Between 1 
and 2 years 

2 436 000

 

Between 2 
and 5 years 

7 308 000 

Over 5 
years 

295 456
Trade and other payables 15 366 484 - - 
Finance lease obligations 286 266 248 673 193 810 -

Interest rate risk  
 

The group has significant interest-bearing liabilities. The group’s income and operating cash flows are 
substantially dependent of changes in market interest rates. 

 
At 31 March 2012, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher with all other variables 
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R 95 070 (2011: R 44 912) lower, mainly as a result of 
interest expense on floating rate borrowings. 

 
Cash flow interest rate risk 

 
` 

Financial instrument                     Current       Due in less   Due in one to Due in two to  Due in three  Due after five 
interest rate    than a year     two years     three years   to four years        years 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. 
The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one 
counter-party. 

 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on 
an on-going basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent 
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past 
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with 
limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in 
cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate. 

 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 
 

` 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and 
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
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2012                   2011                   2012                   2011 
R                         R                         R                         R 

 
34.  Earnings per share 
Earnings per Share 
 
The calculation of earnings per ordinary share for the group is based on income attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of R 3 656 201 (2011: R (2 448 149)) and weighted average of 101 973 333 (2011: 101 973 333) ordinary shares. 

 
There were no dilution on earnings per share. 

 
Diluted earnings per share 
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on an income of R3 656 201 (2011: R(2 448 149)) and a 
weighted average of 101 973 333 (2011: 101 973 333) ordinary shares. 

 
Earnings 
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 
Minorities’ interest 

 

 
3 656 201 

- 

 

 
(2 448 149) 

- 

Basic earnings                                                                                                                   3 656 201          (2 448 149) 
 

 

 
 
Adjustment of basic earnings 

 

Impairment of PPE 324 033 -

Headline earnings 3 980 234 (2 448 149)

 
Ordinary shares 
Issued shares at the beginning of the year                                                                   101 973 333       101 973 333   
Weighted average number of shares                                                                             101 973 333       101 973 333 

 

 
Headline earnings per share                                                                                                 3,90                   (2,40) 

 

Headline earnings per share 
The calculation of headline earnings per ordinary share for the group is based on income of R 3 980 234 (2011: 
R (2 448 149)) and weighted average of 101 973 333 (2011: 101 973 333) shares. 

 
35.  Segment information 

 
No segmental analysis has been presented as the company operates primarily within one product segment, namely 
sauces, and one geographical segment namely South Africa.   
 
Analysis of revenue per customer: 
 
Revenue from the group’s two principle customers, which individually represent over 10% of revenue is as follows: 

 
 Group 
Customer 2012 2011
Customer A 49% 42%
Customer B 31% 27%
 80% 69%
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SHAREHOLDERS ANALYSIS 
 
 
 
 
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% 

Shareholder 
 

No. of Shares % Holding

Shareholders holding more than 5% of total issued capital  
Africa Heritage Properties (Pty) Ltd (transferred to Africa Heritage 
Investments (Pty) Ltd (in liquidation) post year end per court ruling) 

58 048 417 56.93%

Farm Food Holdings (Pty) Ltd 23 802 500 23.34%
National Empowerment Fund 7 860 473 7.71%
Total shareholders 89 711 390 87.98%

 
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 

Shareholder 
 

No. of Shares 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Public 302 16 922 416 16 922 416
  
Non-Public  
Shareholders holding more than 10% of total issued 
capital 

 
2

 
81 850 917 

 
81 850 917

Directors and Associates 1 3 200 000 3 200 000
Total shareholders 305 101 973 333 101 973 333

SHAREHOLDERS ANALYSIS AND INFORMATION 
 No. of Shares No. of Holders % Holding
Individuals 7 645 806 280 7.49%
Nominees and Trusts 510 231 9 0.51%
Close Corporations 168 599 2 0.16%
Companies, Financial Institutions 93 648 697 14 91.84%
Total shareholders 101 973 333 305 100.00%
  
Size of Shareholding No. of Holders No. of Shares % Holding
1 – 1 000 105 39 443 0.04%
1 001 – 10 000 115 577 819 0.57%
10 001 – 100 000 69 2 168 531 2.13%
100 001 – 1 000 000 11 2 416 750 2.37%
1 000 001 and over 5 96 770 790 94.89%
Total shareholders 305 101 973 333 100.00%

 
CATEGORISATION OF SHAREHOLDERS  
PUBLIC VS NON-PUBLIC AS AT 31 MARCH 2012 
 No. of Shares % holding
Non Public   
Shareholders holding more than 10% of total issued capital  
Africa Heritage Properties (Pty) Ltd (transferred to Africa Heritage 
Investments (Pty) Ltd (in liquidation) post year end per court ruling) 

58 048 417 56.93%

Farm Food Holdings (Pty) Ltd 23 802 500 23.34%
Directors and Associates of the Company 3 200 000 3.14%
Public 16 922 416 16.59%
Total shareholders 101 973 333 100.00%

(Per register of shareholders dated 30 March 2012) 
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AH-VEST LIMITED 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 

(Registration number 1989/000100/06) 
("AH-Vest" or "company") 

JSE code: AHL      ISIN code: ZAE000129177 
 

Directors 
NG Mthethwa (Chairman)* S Naidoo*# 
MT Pather (Chief Executive Officer) S Soni*# 
MA Hill (Financial Director)  

* - Non-executive         # - Independent 
 
 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 
 
 
Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of the company will be held in the 
boardroom, Arcay House II, Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg, at 10:00 on Friday, 19 October 
2012, to consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following ordinary and special 
resolutions: 
 
Electronic Participation in the Annual General Meeting 
Please note that the Company intends to make provisions for shareholders of the Company, or their proxies, to 
participate in the annual general meeting by way of electronic communication.  Should you wish to participate in the 
annual general meeting by way of electronic communication, you will need to contact the Company at +27 11 480 
8500 (speak to either Doris Shabangu or Neo Letele) by Wednesday, 17 October 2012, so that the Company can 
provide for a teleconference dial-in facility.  Please ensure that if you are participating in the meeting via 
teleconference that the voting proxies be sent through to the transfer secretaries, namely Computershare Investor 
Services (Proprietary) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001, (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) by 
no later than 10:00 on 17 October 2012. 
 
The board of directors of the Company has determined that the record date for the purpose of determining which 
shareholders of the Company are entitled to receive notice of this annual general meeting is Friday, 13 July 2012 
and the record date for purposes of determining which shareholders of the Company are entitled to participate in 
and vote at the annual general meeting is 12 October 2012.  Accordingly, only shareholders who are registered in 
the register of members of the company on 5 October 2012 will be entitled to participate in and vote at the annual 
general meeting.   
 
The minimum percentage of voting rights that is required for each of ordinary resolutions 1 to 9 to be adopted is 
50% (fifty percent) of the voting rights plus 1 (one) vote to be cast on each resolution. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 1 – Annual financial statements 
“RESOLVED THAT the annual financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the period ended 31 
March 2012, together with the directors’ and auditors’ reports thereon, be received, considered and adopted.” 
 
Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 1: 
In terms of the Companies Act, 2008 (No 71 of 2008) (“the Act”), shareholders are required to approve the annual 
financial statements each year. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 2 – director retirement and re-election – NG Mthethwa 
“RESOLVED THAT:  Ms NG Mthethwa, who retires in accordance with the provisions of the company’s 
memorandum of incorporation, but being eligible offers herself for re-election, be and hereby is re-elected as an 
independent non-executive director of the company.” 
 
Ms NG Mthethwa’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting. 
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Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 2: 
In accordance with the memorandum of incorporation of the company one-third of the directors is required to retire 
at each meeting and may offer themselves for re-election.  In terms of the memorandum of incorporation of the 
company the CEO, during the period of his service contract, is not taken into account when determining which 
directors are to retire by rotation. 

 
Ordinary resolution number 3 – Director appointment – S Naidoo 
“RESOLVED THAT in the interim appointment of Mr S Naidoo as an independent non-executive director of the 
Company as from 2 February 2012 be and is hereby approved.” 
 
Mr Naidoo’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting. 

 
Ordinary resolution number 4 – Director appointment – S Soni 
“RESOLVED THAT in the interim appointment of Mr S Soni as an independent non-executive director of the 
Company as from 29 February 2012 be and is hereby approved.” 
 
Mr Soni’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting. 
 
Explanatory note for ordinary resolution numbers 3 and 4: 
In accordance with the memorandum of incorporation of the company any director that is appointed by the board of 
directors to fill a casual vacancy is required to retire at the next meeting and may offer themselves for re-election.   
 
Ordinary resolution number 5 – Appointment and remuneration of auditors 
“RESOLVED THAT the appointment of PKF (Gauteng) Inc. as auditors, with Mr Sanjay Ranchhoojee as the 
designated auditor at partner status of the company, be and is hereby approved.” 
 
Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 5: 
PKF (Gauteng) Inc. has indicated its willingness to continue as the company’s auditor until the next annual general 
meeting.  The group audit committee has satisfied itself as to the independence of PKF (Gauteng) Inc. and Mr 
Sanjay Ranchhoojee.  The group audit committee has the power in terms of the Act, to approve the remuneration 
of the external auditors.  The remuneration and non-audit fees paid to the auditors during the year ended 31 March 
2012 are contained on page 52. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 6 – Appointment of Audit Committee member – S Naidoo  
“RESOLVED THAT S Naidoo be and is hereby approved to be a member of the audit committee.” 
Mr Suresh’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 7 – Appointment of Audit Committee member – S Soni 
“RESOLVED THAT S Soni  be and is hereby approved to be a member of the audit committee.” 
Mr Soni’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 8 – Appointment of Audit Committee member – NG Mthethwa 
“RESOLVED THAT NG Mthethwa be and is hereby approved to be a member of the audit committee.” 
Ms NG Mthethwa’s curriculum vitae is set out at the end of this notice of annual general meeting. 
 
Explanatory note for ordinary resolution numbers 6 to 8: 
In terms of Section 61 (8)(c)(ii) of the Act, shareholders are required to approve the appointment of the audit 
committee members. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 9 – Approval of Remuneration Policy 
“RESOLVED THAT the shareholders endorse, by way of a non-binding advisory vote, the company’s remuneration 
policy (excluding the remuneration of the non-executive directors and the members of board committees for their 
services as directors and members of committees), as set out in this annual report on pages 7 and below, be and is 
hereby approved.” 
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Remuneration Policy Summary: 
The executive directors are currently remunerated on a cost to company basis with no incentives or bonuses.  
Annual increases are considered each year based on the company’s affordability as well as considering inflation 
and other macro-economic factors.  Key performance objectives will be considered as well as incentives for 
executive directors in the coming year as the company has returned to profitability. 
 
Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 9: 
Chapter 2 of King III dealing with boards and directors requires companies to every year table their remuneration 
policy to shareholders for a non-binding advisory vote at the annual general meeting.  This vote enables 
shareholders to express their views on the remuneration policies adopted and on their implementation. This 
ordinary resolution is of an advisory nature only and failure to pass this resolution will therefore not have any legal 
consequences relating to existing arrangements.  However the board will take the outcome of the vote into 
consideration when considering the company’s remuneration policy.  
 
Nevertheless, for record purposes, the minimum percentage of voting rights that is required for this resolution to be 
adopted as a non-binding advisory vote is 50% (fifty percent) of the voting rights plus 1 (one) vote to be cast on the 
resolution. 

 
Ordinary resolution number 10 – General authority to allot and issue shares for cash 
“RESOLVED THAT subject to the approval of 75% of the members present in person and by proxy, and entitled to 
vote at the meeting, excluding the controlling shareholders of the company and the company’s designated advisor, 
the directors of the company be and hereby are authorised, by way of general authority, to allot and issue all or any 
of the authorised but unissued shares in the capital of the company as they in their discretion deem fit, subject to 
the following limitations:- 
- the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not 

the case, must be limited to such equity securities or rights that are convertible into a class already in issue; 
 this authority shall not endure beyond the next annual general meeting of the company nor shall it endure 

beyond 15 months from the date of this meeting; 
 there will be no restrictions in regard to the persons to whom the shares may be issued, provided that such 

shares are to be issued to public shareholders (as defined by the JSE Limited (“JSE”) in its listing 
requirements) and not to related parties; 

 upon any issue of shares which, together with prior issues during any financial year, will constitute 5% or more 
of the number of shares of the class in issue, the company shall by way of an announcement on Securities 
Exchange News Service (“SENS”), give full details thereof, including the effect on the net asset value of the 
company and earnings per share; 

 the aggregate issue of a class of shares already in issue in any financial year will not exceed 50% of the 
number of that class of shares (including securities which are compulsorily convertible into shares of that 
class); and 

 the maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of the 
company’s shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or 
agreed by the directors of the applicant.” 

 
Explanatory note for ordinary resolution number 10: 
In terms of the company’s memorandum of incorporation, read with the JSE Listings Requirements, the 
shareholders may authorise the directors to allot and issue the authorised but unissued shares for cash, as the 
directors in their discretion think fit. 
 
Special resolution number 1 – Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration 
“RESOLVED THAT, subject to the approval of 75% of the members present in person and by proxy, and entitled to 
vote at the meeting, the approval of the remuneration payable to the non-executive directors for the financial year 
commencing 01 April 2012 as follows: 

 Chairman 
Other directors/members  
of committees 

Board Meeting: 
Monthly retainer: 
Per meeting: 

 
R25 000 
RNil 

 
RNil 
R5 000 

Audit Committee: 
Per meeting: 

 
R10 000 

 
R5 000 
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Explanatory note for special resolution number 1: 
In terms of Section 69 (9) of the Act, shareholders are required to approve the remuneration of non-executive 
directors. 
 
Special resolution number 2 – General authority to enter into funding agreements, provide loans or other 
financial assistance 
 
“RESOLVED that, subject to the approval of 75% of the members present in person and by proxy, and entitled to 
vote at the meeting, in terms of Section 45 of the Companies Act, No 71 of 2008, as amended, the company be 
and is hereby granted a general approval authorising that the company and or any one or more of and/or its wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Republic to enter into direct or indirect funding agreements guarantee a 
loan or other obligations, secure any debt or obligation, or to provide loans or financial assistance between any one 
or more of the subsidiaries from time to time, subject to the provisions of the JSE Limited’s Listings Requirements, 
for funding agreements and as the directors in their discretion deem fit. 
 
Explanatory note for special resolution number 2: 
The purpose of this resolution is to enable the company to enter into funding arrangements with its subsidiaries and 
to allow intergroup loans to subsidiaries. 
 
The minimum percentage of voting rights that is required for this special resolution to be adopted is 75% (seventy 
five percent) of the voting rights plus 1 (one) vote to be cast on each resolution. 
 
Voting and Proxies 
 
Certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with “own name” registration 
If you are unable to attend the annual general meeting of AH-Vest shareholders to be held in the boardroom, Arcay 
House II, Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg, at 10:00 on Friday, 19 October 2012 and wish to be 
represented thereat, you should complete and return the attached form of proxy in accordance with the instructions 
contained therein and lodge it with, or post it to, the transfer secretaries, namely Computershare Investor Services 
(Proprietary) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (P O Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000) so as to be 
received by them by no later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 17 October 2012. 
 
Dematerialised shareholders, other than those with “own name” registration 
If you hold dematerialised shares in AH-Vest through a CSDP or broker and do not have an “own name” 
registration, you must timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting or be represented by proxy thereat in order for your CSDP or broker to provide you with the 
necessary authorisation to do so, or should you not wish to attend the annual general meeting in person, you must 
timeously provide your CSDP or broker with your voting instruction in order for the CSDP or broker to vote in 
accordance with your instruction at the annual general meeting. 
 
Each shareholder, whether present in person or represented by proxy, is entitled to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting.  On a show of hands every shareholder who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote, 
and, on a poll, every shareholder present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for each share held by him/her. 
 
A form of proxy (white) which sets out the relevant instructions for use is attached for those members who wish to 
be represented at the annual general meeting of members.  Duly completed forms of proxy must be lodged with the 
transfer secretaries of the company to be received by not later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 17 October 2012. 
 
 
By order of the Board 
 
Arcay Client Support (Pty) Ltd 
(Registration Number 1998/025284/07) 
Company Secretary 
Date:  6 July 2012 
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ABRIDGED CURRICULUM: 
Suresh Naidoo 
Appointed to the board – 2 February 2012 
Suresh graduated from the University of Durban Westville and he is a CA (SA). 
 
From 1988 to 1990 he completed his articles with Deloitte.  In 1991 he joined Robertson’s (Pty) Ltd (which is now 
part of Unilever). 
 
In 1993 Suresh returned to auditing and he joined a one partner practice called IS Pillay and Co which later merged 
with KPMG and he later became a partner with KPMG. In 2007 he returned to Deloitte and was appointed as 
partner. 
 
Currently he is now the owner of a business process outsourcing company, with 22 staff members. He brings a 
wealth of experience to the board both from an accounting and corporate governance perspective. 
 
Sanjay Soni 
Appointed to the board – 29 February 2012 
Sanjay graduated from the University of Natal – Durban in 1992 where he obtained his B.Comm degree.  He 
subsequently qualified as a Chartered Accountant CA (SA). 
 
Sanjay is a member of SAICA, the Institute of Directors, a mentor with SAICA for SAICA’s BEI program (2010), a 
past member of the Association for the Advancement of Black Accountants (ABASA) and also past Treasurer and 
National Board Member of ABASA. 
 
Between 1994 and 1998, Sanjay was an audit trainee and later became an audit manager at MSGM Masuku 
Jeena (KZN) Inc (now part of PricewaterhouseCoopers). From 1998 to 2000 he was an audit manager with Ernst & 
Young (KZN) and between 2000 and 2002 head of Corporate Finance at Ernst & Young KZN. He was appointed a 
director of Ernst & Young Corporate Finance Johannesburg in 2002 and held that position till 2005. In January 
2006, Sanjay was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Harvey World Travel, Woodmead – a position which he held 
until 2008. 
 
In 2009 he joined Spartan Technology Rentals (Pty) Ltd – a specialist IT leasing finance business to the 
established SME segment and held the position of Head of Operations till 2011. Currently he is an executive 
director of Emerge Capital (Pty) Limited – a niche investment and advisory business.    
 
Nobuhle Gloria Mthethwa 
Appointed to the board – 1 November 2010 
Buhle completed a course in Marketing Management at Damelin (1998) and a Personal Development course at 
RAU (1999). In 2000 she furthered her studies in Trade & Investment Promotion SA in Japan and an Industrial 
Development Programme, CII India in 2003. In 2005 whilst in Italy, she completed a Good Practices in HRM-ILO in 
Italy in 2005. 
 
Buhle operated a successful business venture in Catering, Waste Management and Mechanical Sweeping in 1997 
and is a founder of numerous business entities e.g. Kuhle Kunje Investments Holdings and Khuluma Enterprises. 
She has travelled and participated in numerous business chambers internationally in Turkey, India, Norway, Japan 
and Brazil. 
 
She continued to contribute to the economic transformation of South Africa through participation in various 
organizations such as NAFCOC from 1998 – May 2009, which included the Presidency of NAFCOC and board 
participation in several boards. She has also served as Vice President of CHAMSA and BUSA. 
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AH-VEST LIMITED 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 

(Registration number 1989/000100/06) 
("AH-Vest" or "company") 

JSE code: AHL   ISIN code: ZAE000129177 
 
FORM OF PROXY (for use by certificated and own name dematerialised shareholders only) 
 
For use by certificated and “own name” registered dematerialised shareholders of the company ("shareholders") at 
the annual general meeting of AH-Vest to be held at 10:00 on Friday, 19 October 2012 at Arcay House II, 
Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg ("the annual general meeting"). 
I/We (please print) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
of (address) ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
being the holder/s of ________________ ordinary shares of 0.01 cent each in AH-Vest, appoint (see note 1): 
1. _______________________________________________________ or failing him, 
2. _______________________________________________________ or failing him, 
3. the chairperson of the annual general meeting, 
as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting which will be held for the 
purpose of considering, and if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be proposed 
thereat and at any adjournment thereof; and to vote for and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in 
respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions (see note 
2): 

 Number of votes 
 For Against Abstain
Ordinary Resolution Number 1- 
Adoption of annual financial statements 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 2- 
director retirement and re-election - B Mthethwa 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 3- 
Director appointment – S Naidoo 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number  4- 
Director appointment -  S Soni 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 5- 
Auditor’s re-appointment and remuneration 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 6- 
Appointment of audit committee member – S Naidoo 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 7- 
Appointment of audit committee member – S Soni 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 8- 
Appointment of audit committee member – B Mthethwa 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 9- 
Approval of Remuneration policy 

   

Ordinary Resolution Number 10 - 
General authority to allot and issue shares for cash 

   

Special Resolution Number 1- 
Non-executive directors’ remuneration 

   

Special Resolution Number 2- 
General authority to enter into funding agreements, provide loans or other 
financial assistance 

   

 
Signed at ____________________________________ on ___________________________________ 2012 
 
Signature _____________________________________________________ 
 
Assisted by me (where applicable) _________________________________ 
 
Name_________________________Capacity__________________Signature________________________ 
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1. This form is for use by certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with "own-name" 
registration whose shares are registered in their own names on the record date and who wish to appoint 
another person to represent them at the meeting.  If duly authorised, companies and other corporate 
bodies who are shareholders having shares registered in their own names may appoint a proxy using 
this form, or may appoint a representative in accordance with the last paragraph below. Other 
shareholders should not use this form. All beneficial holders who have dematerialised their shares 
through a Central Securities Depository Participant ("CSDP") or broker, and do not have their shares 
registered in their own name, must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions. 
Alternatively, if they wish to attend the Meeting in person, they should request the CSDP or broker to 
provide them with a letter of representation in terms of the custody agreement entered into between the 
beneficial owner and the CSDP or broker. 

2. This proxy form will not be effective at the meeting unless received at the registered office of the 
company at Arcay House II, Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, Johannesburg, Republic of South Africa, 
not later than Wednesday, 17 October 2012 at 10:00. 

3. This proxy shall apply to all the ordinary shares registered in the name of shareholders at the record date 
unless a lesser number of shares are inserted. 

4. A shareholder may appoint one person as his proxy by inserting the name of such proxy in the space 
provided. Any such proxy need not be a shareholder of the company. If the name of the proxy is not 
inserted, the chairman of the meeting will be appointed as proxy. If more than one name is inserted, then 
the person whose name appears first on the form of proxy and who is present at the meeting will be entitled 
to act as proxy to the exclusion of any persons whose names follow.  The proxy appointed in this proxy form 
may delegate the authority given to him in this proxy by delivering to the company, in the manner required 
by these instructions, a further proxy form which has been completed in a manner consistent with the 
authority given to the proxy of this proxy form. 

5. Unless revoked, the appointment of proxy in terms of this proxy form remains valid until the end of the 
meeting even if the meeting or a part thereof is postponed or adjourned. 

6. If 
6.1 a shareholder does not indicate on this instrument that the proxy is to vote in favour of or against or to 

abstain from voting on any resolution; or 
6.2 the shareholder gives contrary instructions in relation to any matter; or 
6.3 any additional resolution/s which are properly put before the Meeting; or 
6.4 any resolution listed in the proxy form is modified or amended, 

the proxy shall be entitled to vote or abstain from voting, as he thinks fit, in relation to that resolution or 
matter. If, however, the shareholder has provided further written instructions which accompany this form 
and which indicate how the proxy should vote or abstain from voting in any of the circumstances referred 
to in 6.1 to 6.4, then the proxy shall comply with those instructions. 

7. If this proxy is signed by a person (signatory) on behalf of the shareholder, whether in terms of a power of 
attorney or otherwise, then this proxy form will not be effective unless: 
7.1 it is accompanied by a certified copy of the authority given by the shareholder to the signatory; or 
7.2 the Company has already received a certified copy of that authority. 

8. The chairman of the meeting may, at his discretion, accept or reject any proxy form or other written 
appointment of a proxy which is received by the chairman prior to the time when the meeting deals with 
a resolution or matter to which the appointment of the proxy relates, even if that appointment of a proxy 
has not been completed and/or received in accordance with these instructions. However, the chairman 
shall not accept any such appointment of a proxy unless the chairman is satisfied that it reflects the 
intention of the shareholder appointing the proxy. 

9. Any alterations made in this form of proxy must be initialled by the authorised signatory/ies. 
10. This proxy form is revoked if the shareholder who granted the proxy: 

10.1  delivers a copy of the revocation instrument to the company and to the proxy or proxies 
concerned,   so that it is received by the company by not later than Wednesday, 17 October 2012 
at 10:00; or 

10.2   appoints a later, inconsistent appointment of proxy for the Meeting; or 
10.3  attends the Meeting in person. 
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11. If duly authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who are shareholders of the company having 

shares registered in their own name may, instead of completing this proxy form, appoint a representative 
to represent them and exercise all of their rights at the meeting by giving written notice of the appointment 
of that representative.  This notice will not be effective at the meeting unless it is accompanied by a duly 
certified copy of the resolution/s or other authorities in terms of which that representative is appointed and is 
received at the company's registered office at Arcay House II, Number 3 Anerley Road, Parktown, 
Johannesburg, Republic of South Africa, not later than Wednesday, 17 October 2012, at 10:00. 

 

Summary of rights established by section 58 of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 ("Companies Act"), as 
required in terms of subsection 58(8)(b)(i) 

1. A shareholder may at any time appoint any individual, including a non-shareholder of the company, as a proxy 
to participate in, speak and vote at a shareholders' meeting on his or her behalf (section 58(1)(a)), or to give or 
withhold consent on behalf of the shareholder to a decision in terms of section 60 (shareholders acting other 
than at a meeting) (section 58(1)(b)). 

2. A proxy appointment must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder and remains valid for one year 
after the date on which it was signed or any longer or shorter period expressly set out in the appointment, 
unless it is revoked in terms of paragraph 6.3 or expires earlier in terms of paragraph 10.4 below 
(section 58(2)).   

3. A shareholder may appoint two or more persons concurrently as proxies and may appoint more than one proxy 
to exercise voting rights attached to different securities held by the shareholder (section 58(3)(a)). 

4. A proxy may delegate his or her authority to act on behalf of the shareholder to another person, subject to any 
restriction set out in the instrument appointing the proxy ("proxy instrument") (section 58(3)(b)). 

5. A copy of the proxy instrument must be delivered to the company, or to any other person acting on behalf of 
the company, before the proxy exercises any rights of the shareholder at a shareholders' meeting 
(section 58(3)(c)) and in terms of the memorandum of incorporation ("MOI") of the company at least 48 hours 
before the meeting commences. 

6. Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy: 
6.1 the appointment is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder chooses to act directly 

and in person in the exercise of any rights as a shareholder (section 58)4)(a)); 
6.2 the appointment is revocable unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise 

(section 58(4)(b));  and 
6.3 if the appointment is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by cancelling it in 

writing or by making a later, inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a copy of the revocation 
instrument to the proxy and to the Company (section 58(4)(c)). 

7. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy's authority to 
act on behalf of the shareholder as of the later of the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any, or the 
date on which the revocation instrument was delivered as contemplated in paragraph 6.3 above 
(section 58(5)). 

8. If the proxy instrument has been delivered to a company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any 
notice required by the Companies Act or the company's MOI to be delivered by the company to the 
shareholder must be delivered by the company to the shareholder (section 58(6)(a)), or the proxy or proxies, if 
the shareholder has directed the company to do so in writing and paid any reasonable fee charged by the 
company for doing so (section 58(6)(b)). 

9. A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right of the shareholder without direction, 
except to the extent that the MOI or proxy instrument provides otherwise (section 58(7)). 

10. If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more persons named by the company as a 
proxy, or supplies a form of proxy instrument: 

10.1 the invitation must be sent to every shareholder entitled to notice of the meeting at which the proxy is 
intended to be exercised (section 58(8)(a)); 
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10.2 the invitation or form of proxy instrument supplied by the company must: 
10.2.1 bear a reasonably prominent summary of the rights established in section 58 of the 

Companies Act (section 58(8)(b)(i)); 
10.2.2 contain adequate blank space, immediately preceding the name(s) of any person(s) named in 

it, to enable a shareholder to write the name, and if desired, an alternative name of a proxy 
chosen by the shareholder (section 58(8)(b)(ii));  and 

10.2.3 provide adequate space for the shareholder to indicate whether the appointed proxy is to vote 
in favour of or against any resolution(s) to be put at the meeting, or is to abstain from voting 
(section 58(8)(b)(iii)); 

10.3 the company must not require that the proxy appointment be made irrevocable (section 58(8)(c));  and 
10.4 the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the meeting at which it was intended to be 

used, subject to paragraph 7 above (section 58(8)(d)). 
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ADMINISTRATION 
AH-Vest Limited 
(Registration number 1989/000100/06)  
 
Company Secretary and Registered Office 
Arcay Client Support (Pty) Ltd 
(Registration number 1998/025284/07) 
Arcay House II 
Number 3 Anerley Road 
Parktown 2193 
PO Box 62397 
Marshalltown, 2107 
 
Transfer Secretaries 
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd 
(Registration number 2004/003647/07) 
70 Marshall Street 
Johannesburg, 2001 
PO Box 61051 
Marshalltown, 2107 
 
Designated Advisor 
Arcay Moela Sponsors (Pty) Ltd 
(Registration number 2006/033725/07) 
Arcay House II 
Number 3 Anerley Road 
Parktown, 2193 
PO Box 62397 
Marshalltown, 2107 
 
Auditors 
PKF Accountants and Business Advisers 
Practice number 928231A 
105 Club Avenue 
Waterkloof Hieghts 
Pretoria 
0065 
PO Box 98060 
Waterkloof Heights, 0065 
 
SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY 
For the year ended 31 March 2012 
 
Financial year-end End of March each year 
Interim results 30 September 2012 
Record date to be recorded on the share register to 
attend the Annual General Meeting as a shareholder 

 
5 October 2012 

Next Annual General Meeting 19 October 2012 
 


